
Posted on April 25, 2023 at:    
 

 

TOWN OF WIGGINS 
BOARD of TRUSTEES MEETING 

AGENDA 

April 26, 2023 at 7:00 P.M. 

304 CENTRAL AVENUE 
WIGGINS, CO 80654  

NOTE:  DUE TO LIMITED SEATING CAPACITY, THE PUBLIC IS HIGHLY 
ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ZOOM 

GO TO https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89138082108 FOR THE MEETING LINK 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

(Amended) 

I. INTRODUCTIONS 
1. Call the Meeting to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Approval of Agenda 
 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Approval of Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes March 22, 2023 
2. Approval of Board of Trustees Special Meeting Minutes April 5, 2023 
3. Approval of Board of Trustees Special Meeting Minutes April 12, 2023 
4. Approval of Bills April 2023 
 

III. REPORTS 
1. Town Manager Report 
2. Board of Trustees 
3. Financials-Actual to Budget 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Board of Trustees welcomes you and thanks you for your time. If you wish to address 
the Board of Trustees about a specific concern or to comment on an item, this is the only 
time set on the agenda for you to do so. We ask that you be respectful and courteous 
when addressing the board. When you are recognized, please step to the microphone, 
state your name and address. Your comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. The 
Board will not respond to your comments this evening, rather they will take your 
comments and suggestions under advisement and provide direction to the appropriate 
member of Town Staff for follow-up. 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/


V. ARBOR DAY PROCLAMATION 
 
VI. PUBLIC HEARING (Public input will be taken during the public hearing). 

1. Special Review Use for Recreation Vehicle Storage in the Commercial Zone District 
2. Resolution No. 20-2023 - A Resolution Approving a Special Review Use for Cow 

Tipping, LLC for a Recreational Vehicle and Boat Storage Yard Located in Lot 1 of 
the Thomas Minor Subdivision 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARING (Public input will be taken during the public hearing) 
1. An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 01-2022 and Adopting by Reference the 
2018 International Plumbing Code and the 2020 National Electric Code District 
2. Ordinance No. 01-2023 – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 01-2022 and 
Adopting by Reference the 2018 International Plumbing Code and the 2020 National 
Electric Code District Subdivision (Second Reading of Ordinance) 

 
VIII.CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 21-2023 

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 21-2023 – A Resolution Approving Custodial and Deposit 
Agreements with High Plains Bank 

2. Resolution No. 21-2023 

IX. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 22-2023 
1. Consideration of Resolution No. 22-2023 - A Resolution Authorizing the Town Manager to 

Approve Change Orders with GLH Construction for the Main Street Improvements 
Project 

2. Resolution No. 22-2023 
 
X. LIQUOR LICENSE AUTHORITY 

1. Consideration of a Liquor License Renewal – Just One More 
 
XI.  ADJOURNMENT 

1. Closing Remarks by Mayor and Trustees, and Meeting Adjournment 
 

 



Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

TOWN OF WIGGINS 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

March 22, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
A meeting of the Town Board of Trustees for the Town of Wiggins, Colorado was held on Wednesday, 
March 22, 2023.   Mayor Chris Franzen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  The following 
Trustees answered roll call:  Mayor Chris Franzen, Mayor Pro-Tem David Herbstman, and Trustees: 
Mandy Camilleri, Bryan Flax, Steven Perrott, Bruce Miller, and Jerry Schwindt.  Staff present were Tom 
Acre, Town Manager; Hope Becker, Planning & Zoning Administrator; and Melinda Culley, Town 
Attorney. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman to approve the agenda.  Seconded by Trustee Miller.  
Roll Call:  The agenda were unanimously approved.  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval of Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes February 22, 2022.  
Approval of Board of Trustee Special Meeting Minutes March 8, 2023.  
Approval of Bills March 2023 

Trustee Miller inquired what the Core and Main software charge of $5,600 was for.  The Town 
Manager confirmed that this was the yearly charge for the use of Neptune which is the software 
program that reads the water meters. 

Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman asked if the recycled asphalt was done or if there was more work to be 
done and more asphalt to get.  The Town Manager stated he would check with Beau but was sure 
there were more projects coming up and that the Town typically purchases asphalt as needed. 

Mayor Franzen asked questions about the REA bill.   

Motion was made by Trustee Flax to approve the Consent Agenda.  Seconded by Trustee Miller.  Roll 
Call:  The Consent Agenda were unanimously approved.  

TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

 Town Manager Acre provided information to the Trustees pertaining to the upcoming CML 
Conference and the Morgan County Economic Development (MCEDC) Annual Meeting, requesting 
the Trustees respond to his email if they were interested in attending.

0003



Page 2 of 5 

 Attended the MCEDC Bobstock Committee Meeting as they are getting ready for the upcoming 
event. 

 MCEDC Route 76 committee meeting where MCEDC is trying to work with the school district 
encouraging high school graduates to consider going into trades, especially if they are not 
interested in college.  This may encourage students to remain in the area. 

 Continued with water team meetings. 

 Staff has started work on the comprehensive plan update project 

 Worked on three grant requests for Senators Hickenlooper and Bennet for Congressionally 
Directed Spending for this year.  He resubmitted and refined the water tank project, the deep well 
injection, and the automatic bar screen and head works for the sewer plant.  He did not include 
the aerator because the staff will be moving forward with that to prevent further violations with 
CDPHE. 

 He met with the Eastern Plains Manager’s Group.  The group had discussion about the State’s 
push for municipalities to adopt the 2021 Energy Codes.  They also talked about what each Town’s 
strategies have been regarding the energy codes. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORTS 
There were no reports from the Trustees. 

FINANCIALS - ACTUAL TO BUDGET
Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman asked the Town Manager Acre where the extra 1% sales tax being housed 
in the budget.  The Town Manager indicated that it is called Fund 45 on the budget.  He reminded the 
Trustees that we will not start seeing those funds until March. 

The Town Manager addressed some questions that were asked in the last meeting.  He confirmed that 
use tax was higher due to permits from Stagecoach Meats.  The extra expense for plan reviews and 
inspections was due to Stagecoach Meats and Family Dollar. 

Trustee Miller asked about the propane tank behind Family Dollar.  The Town Manager confirmed that 
staff has been working with Family Dollar.  Family Dollar is working with Xcel Energy to get the natural 
gas installed.  Due to delays, Family Dollar is using the propane tank as a temporary solution until the 
natural gas can be hooked up.   

Trustee Miller brought up concerns regarding public works department numbers.  Town Manager 
Acre indicated that he has had discussion with staff and he is going to watch the budget a bit closer 
and make sure allocations are done more carefully between Public Works, Parks, Water, and Sewer 
departments. 

Mayor Franzen inquired an expense of Reserved Capital Outlay that there was $395 expense and 
nothing allocated.  The Town Manager indicated that the parts for the large sander box that was 
purchased this year was allocated to the wrong GL code.  

0004



Page 3 of 5 

Motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman to approve the Financials Actual to Budget.  
Seconded by Trustee Schwindt. Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Public Comments portion of the meeting was opened at 7:27 p.m.  No public comments were 
made from the board room or Zoom Audience. 

The Public Comment portion of the meeting was closed at 7:28 p.m.   

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 01-2023 (First Reading) – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 
No. 01-2022 and Adopting by Reference the 2018 International Plumbing Code and the 2020 National 
Electric Code 
1. Ordinance No. 01-2023 

The First Reading of an Ordinance that amends the Town Building Code that was adopted in 2021.  
The new amendment removes language of following the State of Colorado’s plumbing and electrical 
code and replacing these codes with the 2018 Electrical Code and the 2018 International Plumbing 
Code. 

Trustee Miller asked the Town Manager and Town Attorney, Melinda Culley, if they have reviewed 
this recommendation.  Melinda indicated that due to the lack of clarity in the State Bill that this may 
be in the best interest of the Town to prevent being forced to adopt the 2021 Energy Codes.  

Trustee Miller inquired if the State would continue doing electrical and plumbing inspections.  Town 
Manager Acre indicated that this ordinance would not change anything regarding the current 
permitting and inspection processes.  Contractors would still be required to do electrical and 
plumbing permits and inspections through DORA. 

Motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman to approve Ordinance 01-2023.  Seconded by 
Trustee Perrott. Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 02-2023 – An Emergency Ordinance Imposing a Temporary 
Moratorium on the Issuance of a Building Permit, Special Review Use, Business License to, or Receipt 
of any Land Use Application from any Owner or Applicant the Purpose of which Includes 
Development, Construction, or Operation of a RV Park or Campground 
1. Ordinance 02-2023 

This was an ordinance recommending a temporary moratorium on RV Parks and campgrounds.  The 
recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission in an effort to curb development of RV Park 
concepts, development, and zones until the Comprehensive Plan can be completed.  This is being 
recommended in an effort to provide staff and both boards time to properly develop guidelines that 

0005



Page 4 of 5 

will help the Planning and Zoning Commissioners and the Board of Trustees when having to consider 
special review requests for an RV Park/campground.   

Staff updated the Board of Trustees with the progress the Planning and Zoning Commission has made 
in creating rules and regulations for RV Park applications and development.  Trustee Flax questioned 
staff what the purpose of the moratorium would be because he felt like a moratorium would be 
preventing development. Staff responded that that the moratorium was just a temporary means of 
rest that would provide staff and boards time to create a RV Park Zone but information determining 
where that zone would be best applied in Town would come with the new comprehensive plan.  

Staff explained that if a moratorium was not set in place, then an application could still be turned in 
under the current LDC and current comprehensive plan.  Staff also explained that there was another 
option to amend the LDC with a RV appendix providing development regulations and criteria, but both 
boards would still be relying on the existing comprehensive plan.  The other challenge staff has 
experienced with current zoning is the placement of a RV Park.  Staff provided the Board of Trustees 
with satellite views of Wiggins and showing the Trustees where all the vacant lots were in town.  This 
provided a visual that land options for a RV Park are limited. 

Trustee Flax asked Town Attorney, Melinda Culley, for clarification that the moratorium would help 
protect the town from having to make decisions on a Land Use Application pertaining to RV Parks 
because the moratorium would take out some of the gray areas as to why the Trustees may not 
approve the concept.  Melinda confirmed that there is currently not a lot of clarity about RV parks in 
the current LDC and comprehensive plan.  Allowing for those clarifications to be developed would be 
beneficial in the decision-making process.  Melinda also mentioned that the Trustees could also 
shorten the moratorium.  Staff clarified that the Planning and Zoning Commission has the RV Zone 
concept in final stages and ready for approval just as soon as the comprehensive plan is approved.   

After additional discussion, the Board of Trustees decided to table the agenda item to have staff 
present additional information in a Work Session.   

Motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman to table Ordinance 02-2023 until the Board of 
Trustees had the opportunity to discuss the Ordinance at the next Board of Trustee Work Session.  
Seconded by Trustee Flax. Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 15-2023 - A Resolution Authorizing the Town Manager to Issue 
the Notice of Award to GLH Construction Inc. for the Main Street Improvements Project 
1. Resolution No. 15-2023 

A resolution that authorizes the Town Manager to issue the notice of award to GLH Construction for 
the Main Street Project that includes curb, gutter, sidewalk and new roads from 3rd Avenue to 5th

Avenue.  The project also includes a new drainage system in pipe to go the retention pond off of 3rd

and Corona and it includes a non-potable section of non-potable water line.  It also includes a turning 

0006



Page 5 of 5 

lane on the west side of Main Street entering Tiger Way.  The project also includes some traffic 
medians to help break up the wide roadway and help beautification and access to private driveways 
and parking.  There were three bidders.   

The Town Manager also informed the Trustees that meetings were being set up to talk with public 
works, emergency personnel and the school district to coordinate traffic control.  

Motion was made by Trustee Miller to approve Resolutions 15-2023.  Seconded by Trustee Schwindt. 
Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

LIQUOR LICENSE AUTHORITY – Consideration of a Liquor License Renewal – Mariana’s Mexican 
Restaurant 

Staff stated that the Town has received the application for Liquor License Renewal from Mariana’s 
Mexican Restaurant.  They have paid all appropriate fees and the police department has no issues 
with the renewal application or the premises. 

Motion was made by Trustee Miller to approve the Liquor License Renewal for Mariana’s Mexican 
Restaurant.  Seconded by Trustee Camilleri. Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

Motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman to adjourn into Executive Session.  Seconded by 
Trustee Flax.  Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved.  The Board went into Executive Session at 
8:07 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION - For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be 
subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under 
C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e) – Update regarding water rights and water court case.   

The Board adjourned the Executive Session at 9:07 p.m. 

REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Executive Session was held for the purpose stated above.  Updates were provided by the water 
rights attorney and engineer.  No formal action was taken. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Franzen adjourned the meeting at 9:08 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by: 

Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk

0007

tacre
Tom A



Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

TOWN OF WIGGINS 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES SPECIAL MEETING 

April 05, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
A Special Meeting of the Town Board of Trustees for the Town of Wiggins, Colorado was held on 
Wednesday, April 2023.   Mayor Chris Franzen called the meeting to order at 6:58 p.m.  The following 
Trustees answered roll call:  Mayor Chris Franzen, Mayor Pro-Tem David Herbstman, and Trustees: 
Mandy Camilleri, Bryan Flax, Steven Perrott, Bruce Miller, and Jerry Schwindt.  Staff present were Tom 
Acre, Town Manager; and Hope Becker, Planning & Zoning Administrator. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Motion was made by Trustee Miller to approve the agenda.  Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman.  
Roll Call:  The agenda were unanimously approved.  

PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT TO 2023 BUDGET – Consideration of Resolution No. 16-2023 - A 
Resolution Amending the 2023 Budget by Increasing the Appropriations in the General Fund, 1% Sales 
Tax Capital Improvement Projects Fund and the 2022 Dedicated Streets CIP Sales Tax Fund 

A resolution to amend the 2023 budget due to amended costs of the Main Street Project.  Some items 
are being taken out; however, some beautification items are being added which will increase the 
costs.  Staff is also suggesting a budget amendment for the purpose of purchasing a new phone 
system for the Town Hall.  The phone system is not dropping calls and causing disruption to Town 
services.   

The Town Manager provided additional phone system details to the Board of Trustees.  

Mayor Franzen opened the public hearing at 7:13 pm.  The Town Manager verified that there was 
proper notification of the public hearing.  There were no disclosures from the members of the Board.   

Public comment was opened at 7:17 pm.  There were no comments from the audiences.  Mayor 
Franzen closed the public comment section of the hearing at 7:17 pm. 

Mayor Franzen opened the floor for Board of Trustee discussion.  Trustee Flax asked the Town 
Manager for additional details on the islands that are part of the drawings.  The Manager provided 
more details to the Trustees about the project.  

0008



Page 2 of 2 

Motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Herbstman to approve Resolution 16-2023.  Seconded by 
Trustee Flax. Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 17-2023 – A Resolution Authorizing the Town Manager to Enter 
into a Contract with GLH Construction for the Main Street Improvement Project 

Motion was made by Trustee Schwindt to approve Resolution 17-2023.  Seconded by Trustee Perrott. 
Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 18-2023 - A Resolution Authorizing the Town Manager to Enter 
into a Contract to Purchase Replacement Telephone System for Town Hall 

A resolution that authorizes the Town Manager to enter into a contract to purchase a new telephone 
system for Town Hall.   

Motion was made by Trustee Perrott to approve Resolutions 18-2023.  Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Herbstman. Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 19-2023 - A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the 
Development Agreement with JTS Investments, Inc. for the Family Dollar/Dollar Tree Store at 700 
Central Ave 

A resolution that authorizes the Town Manager to enter development agreement with JTS 
Investments for the Family Dollar / Dollar Tree Store.  The agreement identifies some things on site 
and the completion of Granite Street. 

Motion was made by Trustee Flax to approve Resolutions 19-2023.  Seconded by Trustee Schwindt. 
Roll Call: Motion was unanimously approved. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Franzen adjourned the meeting at 7:41 pm. 

Respectfully submitted by: 

Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk 

0009

tacre
Tom A



Page 1 of 1 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

TOWN OF WIGGINS 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES SPECIAL MEETING 

April 12, 2023 at 8:10 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL:
A special meeting of the Town Board of Trustees for the Town of Wiggins, Colorado was held on 
Wednesday, April 12, 2023.  Mayor Chris Franzen called the meeting to order at 8:10 p.m.  The 
following Trustees answered roll call:  Mayor Pro-Tem David Herbstman and Trustees: Jerry Schwindt, 
Bryan Flax, Bruce Miller, and Steven Perrott. Trustee Mandy Camilleri was absent.  Staff present was 
Tom Acre, Town Manager.  

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:
Motion was made by Trustee Miller to approve the agenda.  Motion was seconded by Trustee Perrott.  
Roll Call:  The agenda was approved unanimously.  

A motion was made by Trustee Flax to go into Executive Session for the purpose stated below.  
Seconded by Trustee Schwindt.  Roll Call:  The motion to go into Executive Session was approved 
unanimously.  The Board of Trustees entered the Executive Session at 8:12 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, 
developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-
402(4)(e) – Location/Construction of water pipeline from Kiowa-Bijou wells to Booster Station.  

The Board adjourned the Executive Session at 8:41 p.m.

REPORT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Board gave general direction to the Town Manager regarding the location/construction of water 
pipeline from Kiowa-Bijou wells to Booster Station.  No formal action was taken during the Executive 
Session. 

ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Franzen adjourned the meeting at 8:42 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by: 

Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk 

0010

tacre
Tom A



TOWN OF WIGGINS - BILLS PAID

APRIL 2023

Vendor Description Amount Paid

ATLAS ENERGY SERVICES Dumpster Charge for Metal Salvage - PW $400.00

BANK OF THE WEST Loan Interest Payment - Knievel $50,856.81

BANK OF THE WEST (0671) Credit Card Payments $3,830.52

BANK OF THE WEST (Sync) Syncing Fund Deposit-Knievel $72,265.50

BEARCOM COMMUNICATIONS INC PD Equipment Repair $615.00

BECKER, HOPE Reimbursement Mileage , Map Racks $152.62

BLOEDORN LUMBER Building Supplies PW $2,766.06

BLUE LIGHTNING Phone/Internet $573.86

BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY Land Lease - Flood Control Levee $401.17

BRUSH RODEO ASSOCIATION 2023 Annual Rodeo Donation $250.00

CASELLE, INC Financial Software Support $906.00

CHS HIGH PLAINS Propane & Herbicide $2,532.84

CIRSA Property Causalty Insurance $42,630.89

CIRSA Workers Comp Insurance $8,300.50

CITY OF FORT MORGAN UTILITIES Farm House Utilities $8.17

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LABORATORY Water Anaylsis $1,162.00

COUNTRY HARDWARE Misc Supplies- PW $1,616.58

EMIL, KIMBERLY A Salary - Judge $312.50

FRANZEN, CHRIS Referee-Soccer $80.00

GARRETSON'S SPORT CENTER Baseballs $152.93

GOPHER EXCAVATION INC Steel pipe PW $3,600.00

HARMAN, STEPHANIE CIS/NIBRS $99.00

HAYES POZNANOVIC KORVER, LLC Water Rights Attorney $13,370.00

HE LLC February 27 thru March 23 $1,500.00

ION DEVELOPER LLC Refund Building Permit 80%/Use Tax $176.88

JONES IRRIGATION SERVICE PW Assistance $16,859.98

KAMMERER, WILLIAM M. Water Shares Lease/Purch Paymt $3,510.42

KC'S GRAPHICS Jersey's Youth Sports $573.50

LEAF Copier Lease $159.00

LRE Water Water Rights Engineering $5,279.00

MARTENS, VIRGINIA Reimbursement Mileage, NVAA Meetings $230.04

MILLER & ASSOCIATES Town Engineer & Water Rights Engr Support $74,184.50

MILLER, CRAIG Reimbursement for LED Lights $42.92

MORGAN COUNTY EDC MCEDC Annaul Meeting x 2 $60.00

MORGAN COUNTY QUALITY WATER 3261 Road U $35.64

NVAA NVAA Ivoice  400 Checks $26.00

OUT EAST CONTRACTING, LLC Recycled Asphalt $650.00

PAINT SHOP 76 Repair 2016 Chevy Tahoe (Insurance) $5,762.11

PAULING, BRUCE AND PAMELA Refund Utility Final Billing Overpayment $5.89

PITNEY BOWES (LEASE & SUPPLIES) Postage Machine $293.59

PITNEY BOWES-PURCHASE POWER Postage $700.00

PRAIRIE MOUNTAIN MEDIA Notice Publication $27.60

QUIMBY, JOENNE Mileage for Training $812.20

QUIMBY, JOENNE Reimburse Hotel Bill for Training $559.86

Page 1 of 2 0011



TOWN OF WIGGINS - BILLS PAID

APRIL 2023

Vendor Description Amount Paid

RH WATER & WASTEWATER, INC. Contract Opp Water & WWTF - Water Analysis $2,890.00

RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY Comprehensive Plan Update $1,912.50

ROBERTSON, ADAM AND SHEENA Refund Utility Final Billing Overpayment $7.89

SAFEbuilt, LLC Building Inspections $4,608.00

SBA CONSTRUCTION Refund Utility Final Billing Overpayment $119.55

SiteOne LANDSCAPE SUPPLY Trees & Supplies Arbor Day $4,051.86

TALAMANTES, JAZMIN Referee-Soccer $80.00

TELEDYNE INSTRUMENTS INC Influent Wastewater Sensor and Cable $1,713.00

TREATMENT TECHNOLOGY Treatment Chemicals RO & WWTF $3,588.00

TRUCKPRO LLC Pump for Dump Truck - PW $1,111.12

VIAERO WIRELESS Cell Phone Charges $551.20

Walker Repair Services WPD Oil Change Service, Rotate Tires $305.32

WELDON VALLEY DITCH COMPANY Kammer Accounting Jan -Feb 2023 $99.50

WIGGINS FARM AND AUTO SUPPLY Vehicle Repair Parts - PW $740.82

WIGGINS SUPER'S 1846 Misc Supplies $58.18

WOLF WASTE, LLC Trash Service $298.00

XCEL ENERGY Utilities-Gas $888.98

Approved: Date:  04/24/2023                                             Total: $341,356.00

Page 2 of 2 0012

tacre
Tom A



TueSun Mon Wed Thur TotalFri Sat

INCIDENT ANALYSIS - DAY 
Date

Time

Report

04/06/2023

08:56:13
CFS03

Agency

Dates 03/01/2023 Thru 03/31/2023
Wiggins Police Dept.

Activity 

Agency: WPD Wiggins Police Dept.

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
00500 Burglary 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
00600 Theft 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2
00700 M/V Theft 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
01720 Assault-sexual 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
02430 Loud Noise 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
02660 Harass/threat 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
02670 Local Ordinance Violation 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2
02671 Dog At Large 0 0 0 2 0 0 4 6
02700 Susp Pers/veh/inc 3 0 1 0 0 2 0 6
03000 Community Policing 0 1 3 2 1 2 0 9
03010 Assist Other Agency 2 3 2 1 4 1 3 16
03030 Building Check 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
03055 Remove A Party 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
03080 Medical Assist 2 0 1 0 1 2 0 6
03100 Welfare Check 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
03120 Extra Patrol 24 17 33 23 49 40 25 211
03121 Vacation House Check 0 0 2 5 2 1 0 10
03540 Traffic Accident 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
03600 Driving Complaint 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2
03610 Parking Complaint 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 4
03750 Meet Party 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
03760 Information 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2
05007 Restraining Order Violati 1 0 1 0 2 0 1 5
07410 Disturbance 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
07510 Abandoned Vehicle 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
07520 Motorist Assist 0 2 0 0 1 1 0 4
07530 Traffic Contact 2 2 5 4 15 5 2 35
07531 Pedestrian Contact 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
07580 Vehicle Inspection 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 4
09000 Fire Investigation LE 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 4
09001 911-Welfare Check 1 2 3 1 2 2 4 15
09003 911-No Answer On Call Bac 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
09900 Follow Up/Investigation 0 2 2 3 1 7 0 15
09902 Civil Issues 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
09917 Special Events 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
09918 Unattended Death 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
SEO Select Enforce Off Init 3 3 13 9 29 9 1 67

Agency TotalWiggins Police Dept. 41 37 71 63 115 75 45 447

Total 41 37 71 63 115 75 45 447

Page 1 of 1
0013



TOWN OF WIGGINS

COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT

MAY 31, 2023

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 1

COMBINED CASH ACCOUNTS

01-10210 HIGH PLAINS-MAIN CHECKING 66,186.80

01-10700 RETURNED CHECK CLEARING ACCT (                   100.30)

01-10750 UTILITY CASH CLEARING ACCOUNT 926.34

TOTAL COMBINED CASH 67,012.84

TOTAL UNALLOCATED CASH 67,012.84

CASH ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS .00

ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE .00

0014



TOWN OF WIGGINS

BALANCE SHEET

MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 2

ASSETS

10-10240 CASH IN BANK COMM HALL FUND SA 10.35

10-10250 COLOTRUST FUND 1.07

TOTAL ASSETS 11.42

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

10-20200 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (              34,836.07)

10-20210 PAYABLE TO SCHOOL DISTRICT 1,088.59

10-22710 FED/ FICA TAXES PAYABLE (                6,763.22)

10-22720 STATE W/H TAXES PAYABLE 5,327.00

10-22740 POLICE PENSION PAYABLE (                1,659.04)

10-22760 DEFERRED COMP CONTRIB PAYABLE (                1,926.64)

10-22770 UNEMPLOYMENT PAYABLE (                     19.47)

10-22820 HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE 8,611.28

10-22825 AFLAC PAYABLE (                     86.72)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (              30,264.29)

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 142,352.97

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 142,352.97

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 142,352.97

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 112,088.68

0015



TOWN OF WIGGINS

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 3

REVENUES

10-31100 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX .00 204,534.78 524,164.00 319,629.22 39.0

10-31200 SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP .00 9,947.24 30,000.00 20,052.76 33.2

10-31300 1% TOWN SALES TAX .00 80,957.94 300,000.00 219,042.06 27.0

10-31301 USE TAX .00 36,798.00 10,000.00 (              26,798.00) 368.0

10-31420 CIGARETTE TAX .00 488.49 1,500.00 1,011.51 32.6

10-31810 SEVERENCE TAX .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-31820 FRANCHISE FEE-MORGAN CTY REA .00 4,881.00 8,000.00 3,119.00 61.0

10-31821 FRANCHISE FEE-XCEL ENERGY .00 8,595.33 8,000.00 (                   595.33) 107.4

10-31823 FRANCHISE FEE--BLUE LIGHTNING .00 994.24 2,750.00 1,755.76 36.2

10-32110 LIQUOR LICENSE (15%) .00 22.50 175.00 152.50 12.9

10-32210 BUILDING PERMITS .00 19,324.83 25,000.00 5,675.17 77.3

10-33412 DOLA EIAF 2021 .00 .00 82,500.00 82,500.00 .0

10-33413 DOLA REDI GRANT (PASS THRU) .00 .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .0

10-33430 MISCELLANEOUS FEES .00 (                       4.95) .00 4.95 .0

10-33530 HIGHWAY USERS TAX .00 12,699.29 55,000.00 42,300.71 23.1

10-33550 ADDITIONAL MOTOR VEHICLE .00 1,916.82 6,000.00 4,083.18 32.0

10-33800 ROAD & BRIDGE .00 23,334.95 40,000.00 16,665.05 58.3

10-34210 SPECIAL POLICE SERVICES .00 89.10 .00 (                     89.10) .0

10-34215 VIN INSPECTIONS .00 75.00 250.00 175.00 30.0

10-34220 BUILDING DEVELOPMENT REVIEW .00 536.05 5,000.00 4,463.95 10.7

10-34221 BUILDING INSPECTION PLAN REV .00 10,955.04 1,000.00 (                9,955.04) 1095.5

10-34282 PARKS & REC FEES .00 70.00 .00 (                     70.00) .0

10-34283 SOFTBALL REG FEES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-34284 BASEBALL REG FEES .00 3,535.00 11,000.00 7,465.00 32.1

10-34286 VOLLEYBALL REG FEES .00 25.00 1,000.00 975.00 2.5

10-34287 SOCCER REG FEES .00 1,680.00 1,500.00 (                   180.00) 112.0

10-34289 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITY FEES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-35110 COURT FINES-MUNICIPAL .00 9,603.15 30,000.00 20,396.85 32.0

10-36000 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS .00 15.00 .00 (                     15.00) .0

10-36010 DOG LICENSES/CLINIC .00 95.00 300.00 205.00 31.7

10-36011 BUSINESS LICENSES .00 250.00 3,500.00 3,250.00 7.1

10-36012 CONTRACTOR LICENSES .00 900.00 1,800.00 900.00 50.0

10-36013 GOLF CART LICENSES .00 50.00 150.00 100.00 33.3

10-36050 CAPITAL CREDITS RECEIVED .00 2,200.98 .00 (                2,200.98) .0

10-36100 INTEREST ON SAVINGS .00 11.42 10.00 (                       1.42) 114.2

10-36310 BUILDING & FARM RENT .00 1,600.00 6,000.00 4,400.00 26.7

10-36420 REFUNDS .00 1.06 .00 (                       1.06) .0

10-36500 CONTRIBUTIONS/DONATIONS .00 60.00 .00 (                     60.00) .0

10-36512 GRANTS--DUI .00 400.00 .00 (                   400.00) .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 436,642.26 1,318,599.00 881,956.74 33.1

0016



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 4

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL

10-410-13 FINANCIAL AUDIT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-410-32 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 3,734.58 22,500.00 18,765.42 16.6

10-410-34 CODIFICATION .00 3,920.00 12,000.00 8,080.00 32.7

10-410-35 COPIER LEASE .00 254.40 650.00 395.60 39.1

10-410-40 EMPLOYEE TRAINING .00 1,372.06 5,000.00 3,627.94 27.4

10-410-41 TELEPHONE & INTERNET .00 1,169.59 1,400.00 230.41 83.5

10-410-42 UTILITIES--ELECTRIC .00 179.96 2,000.00 1,820.04 9.0

10-410-43 OFFICE BLDG REPAIRS & MAINT .00 1,482.00 5,000.00 3,518.00 29.6

10-410-44 POSTAGE METER LEASE .00 105.13 250.00 144.87 42.1

10-410-45 UTILITIES-GAS .00 653.80 1,500.00 846.20 43.6

10-410-46 CELL PHONE .00 335.19 1,260.00 924.81 26.6

10-410-48 TRASH .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

10-410-52 INSURANCE & BONDS .00 14,629.39 32,180.00 17,550.61 45.5

10-410-54 ADVERTISING .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

10-410-55 POSTAGE & SHIPPING .00 82.35 800.00 717.65 10.3

10-410-58 TRAVEL & MEETINGS .00 246.67 5,200.00 4,953.33 4.7

10-410-61 OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 581.83 5,500.00 4,918.17 10.6

10-410-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 567.39 725.00 157.61 78.3

10-410-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

10-410-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 2,967.90 3,000.00 32.10 98.9

10-410-90 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

10-410-91 NEWSLETTERS & PUBLICATIONS .00 300.00 800.00 500.00 37.5

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL .00 32,582.24 124,665.00 92,082.76 26.1

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

10-411-15 ADMINISTRATION DEPT EMPLOYEES .00 17,677.93 134,102.00 116,424.07 13.2

10-411-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 1,487.85 18,115.00 16,627.15 8.2

10-411-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 1,335.90 10,259.00 8,923.10 13.0

10-411-23 457 RETIREMENT .00 732.81 6,500.00 5,767.19 11.3

10-411-25 UNEMPLOYMENT INS .00 29.10 402.00 372.90 7.2

10-411-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 1,342.08 200.00 (                1,142.08) 671.0

10-411-27 EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION .00 4.99 1,200.00 1,195.01 .4

10-411-28 TA VEHICLE STIPEND .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT .00 22,610.66 171,778.00 149,167.34 13.2

0017



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 5

JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT

10-412-00 CONTRACT-JUDGE .00 1,250.00 3,800.00 2,550.00 32.9

10-412-01 CONTRACT-TOWN PROSECUTOR .00 770.00 3,250.00 2,480.00 23.7

10-412-35 COPIER LEASE .00 71.55 400.00 328.45 17.9

10-412-41 TELEPHONE & INTERNET .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-412-44 POSTAGE METER LEASE .00 63.08 .00 (                     63.08) .0

10-412-55 POSTAGE .00 206.73 200.00 (                       6.73) 103.4

10-412-61 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 150.00 150.00 .0

10-412-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 141.85 100.00 (                     41.85) 141.9

10-412-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-412-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 115.50 200.00 84.50 57.8

TOTAL JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT .00 2,618.71 8,300.00 5,681.29 31.6

MAYOR & LEGISLATIVE BOARDS

10-413-10 MAYOR COMPENSATION .00 200.00 2,400.00 2,200.00 8.3

10-413-11 BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMPENSATION .00 1,080.00 2,880.00 1,800.00 37.5

10-413-12 BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPRECIATION .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-413-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 97.92 404.00 306.08 24.2

10-413-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 62.50 100.00 37.50 62.5

10-413-40 BOARD OF TRUSTEES TRAINING .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-413-51 E & O INSURANCE .00 .00 3,200.00 3,200.00 .0

10-413-58 BOARD TRAVEL & MEETINGS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-413-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

10-413-90 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL MAYOR & LEGISLATIVE BOARDS .00 1,440.42 20,184.00 18,743.58 7.1

ELECTIONS

10-414-00 ELECTIONS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

TOTAL ELECTIONS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

TREASURER'S OFFICE

10-415-15 COLLECTIONS (TREASURERS FEE) .00 4,090.70 10,000.00 5,909.30 40.9

10-415-30 TOWN LEGAL .00 7,955.00 60,000.00 52,045.00 13.3

10-415-40 REPORTING & PUBLISHING .00 18.40 500.00 481.60 3.7

TOTAL TREASURER'S OFFICE .00 12,064.10 70,500.00 58,435.90 17.1

0018



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 6

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

10-416-50 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT .00 .00 160,000.00 160,000.00 .0

10-416-51 MEMBERSHP FEE/DUES .00 .00 2,800.00 2,800.00 .0

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT .00 .00 162,800.00 162,800.00 .0

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

10-417-30 COMMUNITY MEETINGS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-417-35 COPIER LEASE .00 47.70 95.00 47.30 50.2

10-417-44 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE .00 42.04 105.00 62.96 40.0

10-417-55 POSTAGE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-417-61 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 120.00 120.00 .0

10-417-63 ABATEMENT .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-417-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 141.85 120.00 (                     21.85) 118.2

10-417-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

10-417-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 115.50 100.00 (                     15.50) 115.5

10-417-85 CODE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-417-91 NEWSLETTER .00 .00 2,100.00 2,100.00 .0

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT .00 347.09 6,340.00 5,992.91 5.5

PLANNING & ZONING

10-418-30 LEGAL/ENGINEERING SUPPORT .00 902.50 3,500.00 2,597.50 25.8

10-418-35 COPIER LEASE .00 47.70 95.00 47.30 50.2

10-418-40 STAFF TRAINING .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-418-41 TELEPHONE & INTERNET .00 .00 425.00 425.00 .0

10-418-44 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE .00 43.16 200.00 156.84 21.6

10-418-49 COMMISSION TRAINING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-418-51 MEMBERSHIPS/PUBLICATIONS .00 39.98 200.00 160.02 20.0

10-418-54 NOTICES/PUBLICATIONS .00 27.60 1,000.00 972.40 2.8

10-418-55 POSTAGE .00 116.37 105.00 (                     11.37) 110.8

10-418-61 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0

10-418-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 141.85 100.00 (                     41.85) 141.9

10-418-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-418-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 294.00 100.00 (                   194.00) 294.0

10-418-93 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN .00 1,912.50 165,000.00 163,087.50 1.2

10-418-94 ZONING MAP .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-418-98 IMPACT FEE STUDY .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

TOTAL PLANNING & ZONING .00 3,525.66 192,875.00 189,349.34 1.8

0019



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 7

COMMUNITY PROGRAMS

10-419-00 FOURTH OF JULY FESTIVAL .00 .00 22,500.00 22,500.00 .0

10-419-01 WIGGINS OLD TIME CHRISTMAS .00 617.41 5,000.00 4,382.59 12.4

10-419-02 FALL HARVEST FESTIVAL .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-419-05 BUSINESS DIST BEAUTIFICATION .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-419-10 EVENTS COORINATOR .00 .00 10,800.00 10,800.00 .0

10-419-20 DONATIONS/GRANTS .00 250.00 10,000.00 9,750.00 2.5

10-419-58 COMMUNITY MEETINGS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-419-62 MAIN STREET PROGRAMS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-419-65 TREES/TREE PLANTING .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-419-66 PLANTERS .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

10-419-91 NEWSLETTER/EVENT POSTCARD .00 .00 750.00 750.00 .0

10-419-99 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS .00 30.60 .00 (                     30.60) .0

TOTAL COMMUNITY PROGRAMS .00 898.01 62,800.00 61,901.99 1.4

0020



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 8

POLICE DEPARTMENT

10-421-02 CONTRACT SERVICES .00 99.00 1,800.00 1,701.00 5.5

10-421-04 OFFICER EQUIPMENT .00 615.00 30,000.00 29,385.00 2.1

10-421-15 POLICE SALARIES .00 46,636.21 194,443.00 147,806.79 24.0

10-421-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 5,326.20 28,602.00 23,275.80 18.6

10-421-21 VEHICLE/MOBILE EQUIPMENT .00 86.47 15,000.00 14,913.53 .6

10-421-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 708.16 14,875.00 14,166.84 4.8

10-421-23 PENSION-FPPA .00 4,730.27 19,444.00 14,713.73 24.3

10-421-24 DEATH & DISABILITY-FPPA .00 481.83 3,306.00 2,824.17 14.6

10-421-25 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE .00 90.03 583.00 492.97 15.4

10-421-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 4,406.65 6,500.00 2,093.35 67.8

10-421-28 FARM HOUSE UTILITIES-GAS/ELECT .00 1,005.33 3,700.00 2,694.67 27.2

10-421-29 UNIFORMS .00 567.33 2,500.00 1,932.67 22.7

10-421-30 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-421-35 COPIER LEASE .00 55.65 150.00 94.35 37.1

10-421-40 TRAINING .00 1,641.37 3,000.00 1,358.63 54.7

10-421-41 TELEPHONE & INTERNET .00 .00 750.00 750.00 .0

10-421-42 MC COM CENTER PHONE LINE .00 79.68 600.00 520.32 13.3

10-421-43 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE (AUTO) .00 6,003.46 7,500.00 1,496.54 80.1

10-421-44 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC .00 179.97 1,200.00 1,020.03 15.0

10-421-45 UTILITIES-GAS .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

10-421-46 CELL PHONE .00 731.61 2,400.00 1,668.39 30.5

10-421-48 TRASH .00 .00 270.00 270.00 .0

10-421-49 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

10-421-52 INSURANCE & BONDS .00 9,884.72 15,000.00 5,115.28 65.9

10-421-55 PRINTING .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-421-61 OFFICE/GEN OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 85.97 1,000.00 914.03 8.6

10-421-62 FUEL .00 1,472.45 13,000.00 11,527.55 11.3

10-421-64 CRIME PREVENTION .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

10-421-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 141.85 100.00 (                     41.85) 141.9

10-421-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-421-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 249.99 4,000.00 3,750.01 6.3

10-421-72 AMMUNITION .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-421-73 LEXIPOLE .00 2,572.89 2,400.00 (                   172.89) 107.2

10-421-85 ANIMAL CONTROL .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-421-90 MEMBERSHIP DUES .00 50.00 300.00 250.00 16.7

10-421-91 POLICE VEHICLE SINKING FUND .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT .00 87,902.09 386,473.00 298,570.91 22.7

BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT

10-424-20 BUILDING INSPECTIONS MATERIALS .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

10-424-30 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW MISC EXP .00 2,302.50 1,000.00 (                1,302.50) 230.3

10-424-31 COMMERCIAL BUILDING REVIEW .00 13,290.20 5,000.00 (                8,290.20) 265.8

10-424-32 RESIDENTIAL BUILDING REVIEW .00 5,020.32 5,000.00 (                     20.32) 100.4

TOTAL BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMEN .00 20,613.02 11,200.00 (                9,413.02) 184.0

0021



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 9

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

10-430-11 SALARY - PW MAINTENANCE(1) .00 22,233.44 5,428.00 (              16,805.44) 409.6

10-430-15 SALARY-PW SEASONAL (MOWING) .00 325.26 6,000.00 5,674.74 5.4

10-430-16 PW EMPLOYEES-FULL TIME .00 2,307.75 40,419.00 38,111.25 5.7

10-430-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PW .00 2,310.90 8,104.00 5,793.10 28.5

10-430-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 1,818.17 3,092.00 1,273.83 58.8

10-430-23 457 RETIREMENT .00 335.26 1,213.00 877.74 27.6

10-430-25 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE - PW .00 47.44 138.00 90.56 34.4

10-430-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION - PW .00 3,519.15 3,000.00 (                   519.15) 117.3

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION .00 32,897.37 67,394.00 34,496.63 48.8

PUBLIC WORKS & STREETS DEPT

10-431-00 UNIFORMS - PW .00 469.96 3,500.00 3,030.04 13.4

10-431-20 REPAIRS-EQUIPMENT & VEHICLES .00 9,757.45 9,500.00 (                   257.45) 102.7

10-431-21 STREETS-SIGNS & MATERIAL .00 585.17 10,000.00 9,414.83 5.9

10-431-22 SNOW REMOVAL .00 2,438.46 .00 (                2,438.46) .0

10-431-23 EQUIPMENT RENTAL .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

10-431-24 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-STREETS .00 6,700.00 .00 (                6,700.00) .0

10-431-25 FARM HOUSE MAINT .00 400.00 3,000.00 2,600.00 13.3

10-431-28 FARM HOUSE UTILITIES .00 .00 2,700.00 2,700.00 .0

10-431-35 COPIER LEASE .00 31.80 95.00 63.20 33.5

10-431-39 GIS .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

10-431-40 EMPLOYEE TRAINING .00 65.62 2,500.00 2,434.38 2.6

10-431-41 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC .00 225.69 1,500.00 1,274.31 15.1

10-431-43 BUIDING MAINT .00 7,330.09 3,000.00 (                4,330.09) 244.3

10-431-45 UTILITIES-GAS .00 653.80 1,200.00 546.20 54.5

10-431-46 CELL PHONE .00 274.53 975.00 700.47 28.2

10-431-47 TELEPHONE & INTERNET .00 85.04 800.00 714.96 10.6

10-431-48 TRASH .00 .00 540.00 540.00 .0

10-431-52 INSURANCE - PW .00 8,117.00 9,611.00 1,494.00 84.5

10-431-55 POSTAGE & SHIPPING-PW .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0

10-431-60 STREET LIGHTING - PW .00 1,764.96 11,000.00 9,235.04 16.1

10-431-61 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 1,400.00 1,400.00 .0

10-431-62 FUEL - PW .00 2,723.24 8,500.00 5,776.76 32.0

10-431-63 CONTRACT REFUSE REMOVAL - PW .00 1,192.00 2,000.00 808.00 59.6

10-431-65 TREE PROGRAM .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-431-66 PEST/WEED CONTROL - PW .00 .00 1,600.00 1,600.00 .0

10-431-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 141.85 78.00 (                     63.85) 181.9

10-431-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-431-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 309.75 424.00 114.25 73.1

10-431-74 EQUIPMENT- CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 2,250.00 2,250.00 .0

10-431-75 RESERVE CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 7,395.00 .00 (                7,395.00) .0

10-431-76 PW VEHICLES SINKING FUND .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-431-77 PW HEAVY EQUIP SINKING FUND .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-431-99 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS - PW .00 803.81 .00 (                   803.81) .0

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS & STREETS DEPT .00 51,465.22 90,673.00 39,207.78 56.8

0022



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 10

STORMWATER

10-432-59 STORMWATER ENGINEERING/DESIGN .00 7,926.25 5,000.00 (                2,926.25) 158.5

10-432-60 STORMWATER CONSTRUCTION .00 1,540.76 .00 (                1,540.76) .0

10-432-61 RETENTION/DETENTION POND MAINT .00 72.99 750.00 677.01 9.7

10-432-62 CULVERT/DITCH MAINT .00 3,600.00 1,000.00 (                2,600.00) 360.0

10-432-63 3RD AVE STORM LIFT STATION .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-432-64 STREET SWEEPING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-432-65 LEVEE REPAIR & MAINT .00 401.17 500.00 98.83 80.2

TOTAL STORMWATER .00 13,541.17 8,250.00 (                5,291.17) 164.1

PARK & RECREATION

10-451-11 SALARIES - P&R DIRECTOR (SEAS) .00 5,535.37 16,200.00 10,664.63 34.2

10-451-12 SALARIES - SUMMER HELP (SEAS) .00 .00 8,108.00 8,108.00 .0

10-451-16 SALARIES-PW FULL-TIME .00 461.55 5,337.00 4,875.45 8.7

10-451-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 237.54 .00 (                   237.54) .0

10-451-22 FICA P&R .00 458.75 2,268.00 1,809.25 20.2

10-451-23 RENTS .00 27.85 .00 (                     27.85) .0

10-451-25 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE .00 12.01 23.00 10.99 52.2

10-451-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 1,344.31 1,500.00 155.69 89.6

10-451-30 SPECIAL EVENTS - P&R .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-451-38 CELL PHONE .00 114.27 490.00 375.73 23.3

10-451-39 TELEPHONE & INTERNET .00 85.04 1,200.00 1,114.96 7.1

10-451-40 TRAINING .00 15.71 1,000.00 984.29 1.6

10-451-41 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC .00 976.37 12,000.00 11,023.63 8.1

10-451-43 PARK REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE .00 27.92 .00 (                     27.92) .0

10-451-48 TRASH .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

10-451-55 NEWSLETTERS/POSTCARDS/POSTAGE .00 43.14 1,200.00 1,156.86 3.6

10-451-60 BACKGROUND CHECKS .00 .00 735.00 735.00 .0

10-451-61 OPERATING SUPPLIES - P&R .00 373.50 4,500.00 4,126.50 8.3

10-451-62 PARKS & RECREATION PROGRAMS .00 25.98 3,000.00 2,974.02 .9

10-451-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-451-71 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 586.25 2,100.00 1,513.75 27.9

10-451-83 SOFTBALL .00 .00 2,750.00 2,750.00 .0

10-451-84 BASEBALL .00 726.43 8,000.00 7,273.57 9.1

10-451-86 VOLLEYBALL .00 .00 750.00 750.00 .0

10-451-87 SOCCER .00 496.00 1,200.00 704.00 41.3

10-451-88 SUMMER ACTIVITY .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-451-90 UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT P&R .00 .00 2,100.00 2,100.00 .0

10-451-91 MISC FEES .00 235.54 .00 (                   235.54) .0

10-451-92 PARK CONCESSION EXPENSE .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-451-93 MEMBERSHIP/PUBLICATIONS .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

TOTAL PARK & RECREATION .00 11,783.53 78,661.00 66,877.47 15.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 294,289.29 1,465,893.00 1,171,603.71 20.1

0023



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 11

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 142,352.97 (            147,294.00) (            289,646.97) 96.7

0024



TOWN OF WIGGINS

BALANCE SHEET

MAY 31, 2023

WATER ENTERPRISE

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 12

ASSETS

20-10250 COLOTRUST-WATER FUND 1.07

20-10251 HIGH PLAINS WATER ENTPR FUND 100.52

20-10260 COLOTRUST - DEVELOPMENT FEES .39

20-10261 2011 USDA DEBT SERV RESERVE 55.69

20-10262 2013 USDA DEBT SERV RESERVE 85.01

20-10270 COLOTRUST-WATER BOND ACCOUNT .13

20-10271 63.23% BOTW DEBT SERVICE (              28,955.99)

20-10273 2020 BOTW LOAN--SINKING FUND 45,693.48

20-10280 COLOTRUST-WATER BOND RESERVE 1.09

20-10290 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE FUND 1.08

20-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 106.46

TOTAL ASSETS 17,088.93

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

20-20200 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (              13,157.05)

20-22900 CUSTOMER DEPOSIT LIABILITY 3,332.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES (                9,825.05)

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

20-29001 SUSPENSE 45,693.48

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (            132,095.93)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (              86,402.45)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY (              86,402.45)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (              96,227.50)

0025



TOWN OF WIGGINS

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

WATER ENTERPRISE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 13

REVENUES

20-34000 WATER SALES .00 187,065.67 900,000.00 712,934.33 20.8

20-34001 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

20-34002 BULK WATER SALES .00 89.00 5,000.00 4,911.00 1.8

20-34440 TAP FEES & ACQUISITION FEES .00 23,278.00 .00 (              23,278.00) .0

20-34442 WATER METER SALES .00 278.00 7,800.00 7,522.00 3.6

20-34450 MISCELLANEOUS WATER INCOME .00 4,275.00 15,000.00 10,725.00 28.5

20-36000 WATER DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTION .00 75.00 .00 (                     75.00) .0

20-36001 RENTAL INCOME .00 452.00 10,000.00 9,548.00 4.5

20-36100 INTEREST EARNED .00 244.98 .00 (                   244.98) .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 215,757.65 938,300.00 722,542.35 23.0

0026



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

WATER ENTERPRISE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 14

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

20-410-13 FINANCIAL AUDIT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

20-410-30 LEGAL SERVICE .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

20-410-31 WATER RIGHTS EXPENSES (LEGAL) .00 19,817.00 80,000.00 60,183.00 24.8

20-410-32 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WATER .00 23,120.69 90,000.00 66,879.31 25.7

20-410-33 POSTAGE .00 167.60 1,200.00 1,032.40 14.0

20-410-34 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

20-410-38 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ACCT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

20-410-40 TRAVEL, MEETINGS & TRAINING .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

20-410-44 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE .00 61.97 105.00 43.03 59.0

20-410-59 DESIGN/SYSTEM ENGINEERING .00 76,594.25 50,000.00 (              26,594.25) 153.2

20-410-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 70.92 .00 (                     70.92) .0

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 119,832.43 246,305.00 126,472.57 48.7

WATER ADMINISTRATION

20-411-12 EMPLOYEE SALARY-ADMINISTRATION .00 .00 67,195.00 67,195.00 .0

20-411-15 ADMINISTRATION DEPT EMPLOYEES .00 16,785.33 .00 (              16,785.33) .0

20-411-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 983.01 10,011.00 9,027.99 9.8

20-411-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 1,264.81 5,141.00 3,876.19 24.6

20-411-23 457 RETIREMENT .00 684.53 3,500.00 2,815.47 19.6

20-411-25 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE .00 26.24 202.00 175.76 13.0

20-411-26 WORKERS'  COMPENSATION .00 .00 175.00 175.00 .0

20-411-72 UTILITY BILLING SOFTWARE EXP .00 .00 2,920.00 2,920.00 .0

TOTAL WATER ADMINISTRATION .00 19,743.92 89,144.00 69,400.08 22.2

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

20-430-11 SALARY-PW MAINTENANCE .00 5,123.15 24,017.00 18,893.85 21.3

20-430-15 EMPL SALARY-PW P/T SEASONAL .00 .00 7,332.00 7,332.00 .0

20-430-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 1,036.68 4,767.00 3,730.32 21.8

20-430-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 349.83 2,398.00 2,048.17 14.6

20-430-23 457 RETIREMENT .00 153.71 720.00 566.29 21.4

20-430-25 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE .00 9.12 72.00 62.88 12.7

20-430-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 354.75 750.00 395.25 47.3

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION .00 7,027.24 40,056.00 33,028.76 17.5

SUPPLIES

20-431-22 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS AND MAINT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

20-431-62 FUEL .00 492.85 750.00 257.15 65.7

20-431-75 VEHICLE REPAIR .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

TOTAL SUPPLIES .00 492.85 7,250.00 6,757.15 6.8

0027



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

WATER ENTERPRISE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 15

OPERATIONS

20-432-00 LINE MAINTENANCE .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

20-432-05 UTILITY LOCATE EXPENSE .00 .00 400.00 400.00 .0

20-432-30 CONTRACT OPERATOR .00 960.00 6,000.00 5,040.00 16.0

20-432-35 COPIER LEASE .00 63.60 600.00 536.40 10.6

20-432-37 ANALYTICAL/SAMPLING EXPENSE .00 2,632.10 13,500.00 10,867.90 19.5

20-432-39 GIS .00 57.75 1,125.00 1,067.25 5.1

20-432-40 TELEPHONE & INTERNET .00 324.95 2,000.00 1,675.05 16.3

20-432-41 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC .00 10,792.51 80,000.00 69,207.49 13.5

20-432-45 UTILITIES-GAS .00 1,112.76 2,500.00 1,387.24 44.5

20-432-46 CELL PHONE .00 .00 764.00 764.00 .0

20-432-48 TRASH .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

20-432-49 UTILITIES-PROPANE .00 2,292.27 7,000.00 4,707.73 32.8

20-432-50 PERMIT FEES .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

20-432-52 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 4,560.39 8,000.00 3,439.61 57.0

20-432-53 BOOSTER STATION MAINTENANCE .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

20-432-54 WATER MAIN INSTALLATION EXP .00 1,756.50 2,500.00 743.50 70.3

20-432-55 METER INSTALL EXPENSE .00 1,027.22 7,800.00 6,772.78 13.2

20-432-56 MAINTENANCE (PLANT) RO .00 55.40 10,000.00 9,944.60 .6

20-432-57 TREATMENT/OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 1,502.20 8,000.00 6,497.80 18.8

20-432-59 WATER WELL MAINTENANCE .00 337.09 1,000.00 662.91 33.7

20-432-61 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

20-432-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

20-432-70 IT SUPPORT .00 2,500.00 500.00 (                2,000.00) 500.0

20-432-75 SYSTEM REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

20-432-85 WATER LEASES .00 3,049.00 70,000.00 66,951.00 4.4

20-432-87 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

20-432-99 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE .00 30.00 1,000.00 970.00 3.0

TOTAL OPERATIONS .00 33,053.74 243,589.00 210,535.26 13.6

DEBT SERVICE

20-471-09 LOAN PMT-CWCB .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

20-471-11 LOAN PAYMENT-USDA .00 10,223.00 147,000.00 136,777.00 7.0

20-471-12 LEASE/PURCHASE PMT-KAMMERER .00 14,041.68 42,125.00 28,083.32 33.3

20-471-13 BOTW SINKING FUND PAYMENT .00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 .0

20-471-14 BOTW INTEREST PAYMENT .00 143,438.72 95,000.00 (              48,438.72) 151.0

20-471-50 LOAN ISSUANCE COSTS .00 .00 18,969.00 18,969.00 .0

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 167,703.40 388,094.00 220,390.60 43.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 347,853.58 1,014,438.00 666,584.42 34.3

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 (            132,095.93) (              76,138.00) 55,957.93 (173.5)

0028



TOWN OF WIGGINS

BALANCE SHEET

MAY 31, 2023

SEWER ENTERPRISE

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 16

ASSETS

30-10250 COLOTRUST FUND 1.07

30-10251 HIGH PLAINS SEWER ENTPR FUND 35.00

30-10260 COLOTRUST SEWER PROJECT 1.07

30-10271 36.77% BOTW DEBT SERVICE (              16,838.38)

30-10273 2020 BOTW LOAN--SINKING FUND 26,572.02

30-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 196.14

TOTAL ASSETS 9,966.92

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

30-20200 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 28,318.52

30-22900 CUSTOMER DEPOSIT LIABILITY (                   182.00)

TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,136.52

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

30-29001 SUSPENSE 26,572.02

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (              49,847.53)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (              23,275.51)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY (              23,275.51)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,861.01

0029



TOWN OF WIGGINS

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

SEWER ENTERPRISE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 17

REVENUES

30-34000 SEWER SALES .00 108,799.24 420,000.00 311,200.76 25.9

30-34001 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS .00 .00 150.00 150.00 .0

30-36100 INTEREST EARNED .00 37.14 .00 (                     37.14) .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 108,836.38 420,150.00 311,313.62 25.9

0030



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

SEWER ENTERPRISE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 18

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

30-410-13 FINANCIAL AUDIT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

30-410-30 LEGAL SERVICE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

30-410-32 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 3,722.48 20,000.00 16,277.52 18.6

30-410-33 POSTAGE .00 167.60 1,000.00 832.40 16.8

30-410-34 SEWER DEPOSIT REFUND .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

30-410-35 COPIER LEASE .00 63.60 600.00 536.40 10.6

30-410-40 TRAINING .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

30-410-44 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE .00 61.97 105.00 43.03 59.0

30-410-67 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

30-410-68 COPIER EXPENSE .00 70.92 600.00 529.08 11.8

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 4,086.57 31,005.00 26,918.43 13.2

SEWER ADMINISTRATION

30-411-14 EMPLOYEE SALARIES-ADMIN .00 .00 67,195.00 67,195.00 .0

30-411-15 ADMINISTRATION DEPT EMPLOYEES .00 16,785.26 .00 (              16,785.26) .0

30-411-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 982.98 10,011.00 9,028.02 9.8

30-411-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 1,264.77 5,141.00 3,876.23 24.6

30-411-23 457 RETIREMENT .00 684.53 3,500.00 2,815.47 19.6

30-411-25 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE .00 26.31 202.00 175.69 13.0

30-411-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 175.00 175.00 .0

30-411-70 IT SUPPORT .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

30-411-72 UTILITY SOFTWARE EXPENSE .00 .00 2,920.00 2,920.00 .0

TOTAL SEWER ADMINISTRATION .00 19,743.85 89,394.00 69,650.15 22.1

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

30-430-11 SALARY-PW MAINTENANCE .00 4,200.05 .00 (                4,200.05) .0

30-430-12 SALARY-PW MAINTENANCE .00 923.10 24,017.00 23,093.90 3.8

30-430-13 EMPL SALARY-PW P/T SEASONAL .00 .00 7,332.00 7,332.00 .0

30-430-20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 1,036.68 4,767.00 3,730.32 21.8

30-430-22 FICA & MEDICARE .00 349.72 2,398.00 2,048.28 14.6

30-430-23 457 RETIREMENT .00 153.65 720.00 566.35 21.3

30-430-25 UNEMPLOYMENT .00 9.04 72.00 62.96 12.6

30-430-26 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 215.50 750.00 534.50 28.7

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION .00 6,887.74 40,056.00 33,168.26 17.2

0031



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

SEWER ENTERPRISE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 19

WWTP

30-431-22 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE/REPAIRS .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

30-431-45 UTILTIES-GAS .00 .00 400.00 400.00 .0

30-431-48 TRASH .00 .00 876.00 876.00 .0

30-431-51 WWTP ENGINEERING & CONTINGENCY .00 .00 7,500.00 7,500.00 .0

30-431-59 ENGINEERING DESIGN .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

30-431-62 FUEL .00 492.85 800.00 307.15 61.6

30-431-74 CAPITAL OUTLAY WWTP .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

30-431-75 VEHICLE REPAIRS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

TOTAL WWTP .00 492.85 56,076.00 55,583.15 .9

OPERATIONS

30-432-00 LINE MAINTENANCE .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

30-432-05 UTILITY LOCATE EXPENSE .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

30-432-30 CONTRACT OPERATOR .00 960.00 6,000.00 5,040.00 16.0

30-432-39 COMPUTER SOFTWARE-GIS .00 57.75 1,125.00 1,067.25 5.1

30-432-41 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC .00 3,669.52 28,000.00 24,330.48 13.1

30-432-42 TELEPHONE/INTERNET .00 238.97 500.00 261.03 47.8

30-432-45 UTILITIES --GAS .00 653.80 1,200.00 546.20 54.5

30-432-46 CELL PHONE .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

30-432-48 TRASH .00 400.00 1,200.00 800.00 33.3

30-432-50 PERMIT FEES .00 1,708.00 3,500.00 1,792.00 48.8

30-432-51 ANALYTICAL/SAMPLING EXPENSE .00 3,907.40 3,000.00 (                   907.40) 130.3

30-432-52 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 4,560.39 9,000.00 4,439.61 50.7

30-432-53 SEWER CLEANING/VIDEO .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

30-432-54 INSTALLATION OF LINE EXPENSE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

30-432-55 GENERAL MAINT CENT LIFT ST .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

30-432-56 GENERAL MAINTENANCE OF PLANT .00 7,448.69 2,000.00 (                5,448.69) 372.4

30-432-57 GENERAL MAINT JOHNSON LT ST .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

30-432-59 ENGINEERING DESIGN .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

30-432-60 TREATMENT OPERATIONS .00 5,111.80 7,500.00 2,388.20 68.2

30-432-61 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

30-432-99 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL OPERATIONS .00 28,716.32 81,925.00 53,208.68 35.1

DEBT SERVICE

30-471-13 BOTW SINKING FUND PAYMENT .00 79,524.97 106,288.00 26,763.03 74.8

30-471-14 BOTW INTEREST PAYMENT .00 19,231.61 44,124.00 24,892.39 43.6

30-471-50 LOAN ISSUANCE COSTS .00 .00 11,031.00 11,031.00 .0

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 98,756.58 161,443.00 62,686.42 61.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 158,683.91 459,899.00 301,215.09 34.5

0032



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

SEWER ENTERPRISE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 20

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 (              49,847.53) (              39,749.00) 10,098.53 (125.4)

0033



TOWN OF WIGGINS

BALANCE SHEET

MAY 31, 2023

SALES TAX CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 21

ASSETS

40-10250 COLOTRUST FUND 1.07

40-10251 HIGH PLAINS 1% TAX FUND 15.92

TOTAL ASSETS 16.99

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

40-20200 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (                3,610.00)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (                3,610.00)

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 75,903.66

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 75,903.66

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 75,903.66

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 72,293.66

0034



TOWN OF WIGGINS

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

SALES TAX CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 22

REVENUES

40-31300 1% TOWN SALES TAX .00 80,957.92 300,000.00 219,042.08 27.0

40-36100 INTEREST EARNED .00 16.99 5.00 (                     11.99) 339.8

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 80,974.91 300,005.00 219,030.09 27.0

0035



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

SALES TAX CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 23

CAPITAL PROJECTS

40-430-00 CIP - SEWER REPLACE BNSF .00 4,368.75 .00 (                4,368.75) .0

40-430-05 CIP-NORTH STORM DETENTION .00 .00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .0

40-430-10 CIP-MAIN STREET C&G 3RD TO 5TH .00 702.50 .00 (                   702.50) .0

40-430-16 CIP-TOWN HALL DIGITAL SIGN .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

40-430-17 CIP-TH/PW EXT IMP .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

40-430-18 CIP-NON POT WATER MAIN .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

40-430-19 CIP-CR P CROSSING SIGNAL .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS .00 5,071.25 245,000.00 239,928.75 2.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 5,071.25 245,000.00 239,928.75 2.1

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 75,903.66 55,005.00 (              20,898.66) 138.0

0036



TOWN OF WIGGINS

BALANCE SHEET

MAY 31, 2023

FUND 45

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 24

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (                1,300.00)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (                1,300.00)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY (                1,300.00)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (                1,300.00)

0037



TOWN OF WIGGINS

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

FUND 45

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 25

REVENUES

45-31300 1% TOWN SALES TAX (2022) .00 .00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .0

45-36100 INTEREST EARNED .00 .00 5.00 5.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 300,005.00 300,005.00 .0

0038



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

FUND 45

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 26

45-430-10 CIP-MAIN STREET C&G 3RD TO 5TH .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 430 .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

DEPARTMENT 431

45-431-22 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-STREETS .00 1,300.00 25,000.00 23,700.00 5.2

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 431 .00 1,300.00 25,000.00 23,700.00 5.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 1,300.00 125,000.00 123,700.00 1.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 (                1,300.00) 175,005.00 176,305.00 (      .7)

0039



TOWN OF WIGGINS

BALANCE SHEET

MAY 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 27

ASSETS

50-10250 COLOTRUST FUND 1.76

50-10251 HIGH PLAINS CNSRVTN TRST FUND 7.83

TOTAL ASSETS 9.59

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 1,090.84

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 1,090.84

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 1,090.84

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,090.84

0040



TOWN OF WIGGINS

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 28

REVENUES

50-33501 CT - ST PROCEEDS (LOTTERY) .00 6,486.25 13,000.00 6,513.75 49.9

50-36100 INTEREST EARNED .00 9.59 10.00 .41 95.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 6,495.84 13,010.00 6,514.16 49.9

0041



TOWN OF WIGGINS

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 5 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 41 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  04/24/2023     03:08PM       PAGE: 29

DEPARTMENT 430

50-430-15 CAPITAL OUTLAY--K PARK ELEC .00 5,405.00 10,000.00 4,595.00 54.1

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 430 .00 5,405.00 10,000.00 4,595.00 54.1

PARK OPERATIONS

50-452-60 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL PARK OPERATIONS .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 5,405.00 12,500.00 7,095.00 43.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 1,090.84 510.00 (                   580.84) 213.9

0042



 

TREE CITY USA 
An Arbor Day Foundation Program 

OFFICIAL PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS in 1872, the Nebraska Board of Agriculture established a special day 

to be set aside for the planting of trees, and 

WHEREAS this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting 

of more than a million trees in Nebraska, and 

WHEREAS Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

WHEREAS trees can be a solution to combating climate change by reducing the 
erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cutting heating 

and cooling costs, moderating the temperature, cleaning the air, 
producing life-giving oxygen, and providing habitat for wildlife, and 

WHEREAS trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our 

homes, fuel for our fires, and countless other wood products, and 

WHEREAS trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic 

vitality of business areas, and beautify our community, and 

WHEREAS trees — wherever they are planted — are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal. 

NOW, THEREFORE      I Chris Franzen, Mayor of the Town of Wiggins, Colorado, do hereby 

                                            proclaim April 29, 2023 as ARBOR DAY in the Town of Wiggins, Colorado, 

                                          and I urge all citizens to celebrate 151 years of Arbor Day and to support  

                                          efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and 

FURTHER,                I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the 

well-being of this and future generations. 

                                   DATED THIS 26th, DAY OF APRIL, 2023. 

                                                                Mayor, Town of Wiggins:  ________________________________    

 

0043



STAFF SUMMARY 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
April 26, 2023

DATE:  April 21, 2023 

AGEND ITEM NUMBER: 6 

TOPIC:  Public Hearing and Consideration of a Special Review Use Recreation for Vehicle Storage in 
the Commercial Zone District 

STAFF MEMBER RESPONSIBLE:  Hope Becker, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

BACKGROUND: 
Brady Powers and Robin Sewing have 
submitted a Special Review Use 
application for development of a 
recreational vehicle and boat storage yard 
located in lot 1 of the Thomas Minor 
Subdivision.   

Lot 1 of the Thomas Minor subdivision 
consists of vacant land located behind 
Gateway Realty on Central Avenue and 
behind Steffen Automotive on North Main 
Street.  The primary entrance to access this 
lot will be from North Main Street.  The 
applicants’ goal is to clean up the area of all 
trash, junk, and debris with the desire to 
develop this lot into storage for RV’s, 
campers, boats, and other recreational 
vehicles. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The Comprehensive Plan is predominantly used as a tool providing guidance for Boards and 
Staff in land use application hearings.  It does state an objective of the Town should be to 
“maintain or improve the current level of services.” (page IV-19) Although a Recreational 

0044



Vehicle Storage service will not bring additional sale tax revenue to the Town, it will provide a 
place of storage for recreational vehicles that Wiggins Community members may not otherwise 
have available at their private residences.   

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE (LDC):  
Zoning –Thomas Minor Subdivision is zoned Commercial District.  

Section 2.10.C.1 – Special Review uses allowed in the Business District in Section 3.7.4 with 
exception of multi-family and single-family dwellings are allowed. 

A. Section 2.09.C.16 (Business District Special Review) allows “recreational vehicle storage 
yards” by special review.

Thomas Minor Subdivision is zoned Commercial District.  Recreational Vehicle Storage Yards are 
listed as a Special Review Use in the Business District.  The LDC indicates that Special Review 
uses allowed in the Business District may also be used in the Commercial District as a Special 
Review Use.   

Section 3.02 Commercial and Industrial Use Performance Standards 
The Thomas Minor Subdivisions are located in the Commercial District Zone; therefore, the Board 
of Trustees need to take into consideration if the proposed development will cause an increase in 
glare and heat, vibration, lights, smoke, odors, noise, and fugitive dust.   

The Thomas Minor Subdivision is located near the edge of Town limits.  Interstate 76 is directly 
north of the property, the Town’s sewer plant is directly west of the property, and open space to 
the north of the property.  There is a residential single-family home to the southwest of the lot in 
special review and a couple of businesses to the south.  

Appendix 11 – Sign Permit Submission Requirements and Standards
The applicant may place signage along North Main Street and possibly one sign on Central 
Avenue near their fabrication shop.  All signs would be required to follow the requirements and 
standards for signage as indicated in the LDC. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 
The Special Review Use application area, 
highlighted in blue, would be a fenced in area 
developed for a recreational vehicle/boat storage 
yard.  The lot will remain in its natural vegitative 
state and will be groomed to remain in 
compliance with Health and Safety standards for 
weed control.  The applicants have an active fence 
permit to install a 6’ privacy fence with one 
primary entrance/exit located on the north west 
side of the property allowing customers to use the 
public easement access entry from North Main 
Street.  There will also be an emergency exit 

0045



established on the east side of the lot; providing accessibility to emergency personnell from the 
access easement off of Central Avenue. 

Fire Department Review: Fire Chief John Pachek voiced concerns regading the continued use of 
natural vegetation verses hardsurfacing the lot with crushed concrete or asphalt.  However, Fire 
Chief Pachek also stated that natural vegetation would not prevent the Fire Department from 
responding to emergency calls to this lot.  He encouraged that natural vegetation is kept short 
and trimmed to help prevent health and safety concerns as per the Town’s Health and Safety 
Ordiannce.  Chief Pachek also stated concerns regarding parking spaces on the east side of the 
lot, identified on the site plan in yellow, potentially blocking the required secondary emergency 
exit.  The yellow area identified on the map below is the general area the Fire Chief indicated a 
10’ emergency  exit would need to be constructed.  Also in yellow are lots the south side that 
block direct access to the west driving lane in the RV storage yard.  A 10’ wide, secondary 
emergency exit gate located off the Central Avenue access easement must be provided and 
shown on the site plan. Fire Department comments also state there needs to be a emergency 
drive lane created on the south side of the property (adjacent to Gateway Realty’s rear 
property line) to allow emergency vehicles access to the west drive lane from the emergency 
access off of Central Avenue.  The applicant will need to work with Fire Chief Pachek to 
determine the acceptable width for the emergency lane.  The amended site plan will be also be 
reviewed by Fire Chief Pachek. 

It was determined that fire hydrants near the subject property are within the  distance required 
to service the property if in the event there was a fire or need for emergency water to the lot.  
The Land Development Code does not have a requirement for Knox Boxes and fire codes do not 
require a Knox Box for this type of commercial use.  Fire Chief Pachek stated that a Knox Box is 

0046



the quickest and preffered method of emergency access for the fire department; however, it is 
requested that key codes and/or keys are shared with the fire department if a different form of 
securty is implemented.  Comments provided by Chief Pachek are attached to the Resolution as 
Exhibit A. 

Town Engineer Review:  Town Engineer, David Hach, responded with comments indicating that 
as long as the historical, physical characteristics of the land does not change then there would 
be no need to request and review a grading plan.  However, a grading plan and permit would be 
required if the applicant should choose to hard surface the lot in the future as this would 
change the historical stormwater flows of the lot.  

Town Attorney Review:  The Town Attorney, Melinda Culley, responded with comments that 
provide changes that need to be made to the site plan for recording purposes.  The changes 
included adding signature blocks for the purpose of recording and adding a title to the site plan 
to identify the project.  These changes are included to the resolution as conditions of approval 
of the special review.  Comments provided by the Town Attorney are attached to the 
Resolution as Exhibit B. 

The approved special review use will be recorded with the Morgan County Clerk and Recorder.  
In addition, the owners of the Recreation Vehicle Storage Yard will be required to apply for a 
Business License which will also help staff keep track of ownership changes.   

SUMMARY: 
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on March 14, 2023 and passed a 
Resolution recommending approval with conditions to the Board of Trustees. 

The site plan will need to be amended to reflect accurate information as it was approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of Trustees.  These amendments include the 
comments that have been presented by the Fire Chief and the Town Attorney.  Their comments 
are attached to the Resolution as Exhibits A and B. 

The recorded plats for the Walton and Thomas Minor Subdivisions indicate that the access 
easements are public access easements.  A condition of the resolution approval state that both 
access easements must remain open and clear of obstructions and fences unless the access 
easements are vacated by the Board of Trustees in the future.   

Renting space in the storage yard to community members for recreational vehicles and boats will 
require the applicants to apply for a business license with the Town.  The applicant will be required 
to obtain a business license each calendar as per the Town’s Business License Ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
Approving this Resolution has no negative impact on the Town’s adopted budget.   

0047



APPLICABILITY TO TOWN OBJECTIVES AND GOALS TO PROVIDE SERVICES:
Approving this special review application will provide Wiggins community members an 
alternative place to store recreational vehicles and boats close to their homes. 

OPTIONS AVAILABE TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

 The Board of Trustees may approve the Resolution staff has provided for their 
consideration.  

 The Board of Trustees may approve the Resolution with additional conditions. 

 The Board of Trustees may continue the public hearing to the next Board of Trustee 
meeting and request that staff or the applicant provide additional information to be 
brought forth. 

MOTION FOR APPROVAL:
I make the motion to adopt Resolution 20-2023 – A Resolution Approving a Special Review Use 
for Cow Tipping, LLC for a Recreational Vehicle and Boat Storage Yard Located in Lot 1 of the 
Thomas Minor Subdivision 

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion, Second, Roll-Call, Vote. 
(Resolutions require affirmative votes from the majority of Trustees present.) 

0048



   

TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SPECIAL REVIEW USE FOR COW TIPPING, LLC 

FOR A RECREATIONAL VEHICLE AND BOAT STORAGE YARD LOCATED IN 

LOT 1 OF THE THOMAS MINOR SUBDIVISION 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the Board of Trustees of the Town of Wiggins a request 

for approval of Special Review Use for Cow Tipping, LLC for a Recreational Vehicle and Boat Storage 

Yard in Lot 1 of the Thomas Minor Subdivision; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, all materials related to the proposed special review use have been reviewed by the 

Town Staff and the Wiggins Planning and Zoning Commission and found with conditions to be in 

compliance with the Town of Wiggins subdivision and zoning ordinances and related Town ordinances, 

regulations, and policies; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Wiggins Planning Commission has held a properly noticed public hearing on 

the application, and has forwarded to the Board of Trustees a recommendation of approval with conditions; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the criteria for special review uses set forth 

in the Town’s Land Development Code, and finds that with conditions: 

  

a. The proposed use is in harmony and compatible with the character of the surrounding 

neighborhood; 

 

b. The proposed use is consistent with the Town’s comprehensive plan; 

 

c. The proposed will not have a material adverse effect on Town capital improvement 

programs;  

 

d. The proposed use will not result in an over-intensive use of the land; 

 

e. The proposed use will not result in undue traffic congestion or hazards; 

 

f. The proposed use will not cause significant air, water or noise pollution; 

 

g. The proposed use will not require a level of community facilities and services greater than 

that available; and  

 

h. The proposed use shall not be detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of current or 

future inhabitants of the Town; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has duly considered the proposed special review use and has 

held a properly noticed public hearing on the application; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees finds that the proposed special review use should be approved, 

subject to certain conditions. 

 

0049



   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. The Board of Trustees hereby approves a special review use application for Cow 

Tipping, LLC for a recreational vehicle and boat storage yard in Lot 1 of the Thomas Minor Subdivision, 

subject to the following conditions:  

 

 1. The site plan shall be amended to address the Wiggins Rural Fire District’s comments 

regarding the addition of an emergency exit with access from the Central Avenue access easement and 

an additional access lane on the south side of the property to access the west drive lane from the 

emergency access from Central Avenue access easement.   

 

 2.  The access easements located off of Central Avenue and North Main Street must 

remain open and clear of obstructions and fences unless vacated by the Board of Trustees in the future. 

 

 3. Site plan shall be amended to address the Town Attorney’s comments (exhibit A) 

regarding the signature blocks and to address the Fire Chief’s comments (exhibit B) prior to recording.  

Site plan shall be submitted in pdf format to the Planning and Zoning Department. 

 

The approved special review use will be recorded with the Morgan County Clerk and Recorder’s office 

by the Town for the purpose of creating a land use record for future owners after the amendments are 

approved by Town Staff. 

 

 4. Development of the Recreational Vehicle and boat storage yard shall not commence 

until the site plan amendments have been approved by Town Staff and recorded with Morgan County 

Clerk and Recorder. 

 

 5. The applicant will be required to obtain a business license, as per the business license 

ordinance, prior to the storage of recreational vehicles and boats.  

 

 

INTRODUCED, RECOMMENDED, AND RESOLVED THIS 26TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 

 

 

TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

       Christopher Franzen, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk 

0050



0051



Wiggins Rural Fire Protection District
Wiggins, Colorado

Goodrich Station Wiggins Station Hoyt Station
24150 2nd Street         701 Central Avenue       4929 MCR 5
Orchard, CO 80649 Wiggins, CO 80654       Wiggins, CO 80654
970-645-1000 970-483-6666               970-483-5555

To whom it may concern,

In regards to the Branned Boat/RV Storage items the Wiggins Rural Fire Protection District would
like to see:

1. An emergency access point will need to be created to allow emergency vehicles into the lot from
the road access. Preferably, the southeast corner of the lot- opposite the main entrance.
Emergency access must be a minimum of 10' wide.

2. A lane will need to be created on the south side of the lot allowing emergency vehicles to get to
the west end of the lot.

3. A Knox Box would be preferable as all the Knox Box keys are the same in our district, allowing
each emergency vehicle the ability to enter premises through the main gate. Number codes/keys
can get changed without any notice/updates to Wiggins Rural Fire Protection District.

0052

EXHIBIT A



0053



Kelly PC 
101 University Boulevard, Suite 210, Denver, CO  80206 

 

 

 

 

Melinda A. Culley 

(303) 298-1601 tel    

(303) 298-1627 fax 

melinda@kellypc.com 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

    TO:  Hope Becker, Planning and Zoning Administrator  

     Town of Wiggins 

 

                    FROM:  Melinda A. Culley /s/ 

 

          DATE:  January 12, 2023 

 

RE: RV Storage 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

I reviewed the site plan for the RV storage area and have the following comments:  

 

1. Provide a current title commitment/report for the property so that ownership can be 

confirmed.   

 

2. Add a title to the document that identifies the name of the project. 

 

3. You may want to require a separate sheet specific to the lot being developed that shows 

more site details.   

 

4. If landscaping will be provided, add to the plans. Consider adding an example of the 

fencing that will be installed.   

 

5. Identify the surfacing material of the access drives and parking area.   

 

6. Add the following signature blocks: 

 

OWNERSHIP  

 

We the undersigned, being Owner(s) of the land herein described located in the Town of Wiggins, 

County of Morgan, State of Colorado, hereby submit these plans and agree to perform under the 

terms noted hereon. 

 

 

0054

EXHIBIT B



Kelly PC 
101 University Boulevard, Suite 210, Denver, CO  80206 

OWNER: 

 

By: ________________________ 

Its: ________________________ 

 

STATE OF COLORADO          )  

                   ) SS 

COUNTY OF _________             ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of _________,  20__. 

       

 

Witness my hand and official seal.   

     

Notary Public 

     

My Commission expires 

 

 

 

TOWN APPROVAL BLOCK  

This is to certify that the Site Plan for __________________ were approved on this ______ day 

of ________________, 2016.    

 

 

_______________________    ATTEST: ____________________ 

Town Administrator        Town Clerk  

 

 

CLERK AND RECORDER’S CERTIFICATE  

I hereby certify that this instrument was filed in my office at______ o'clock ___.m., this _______ 

day of , 20__, and is recorded under Reception No. _____________, 

 

 __________________________________  

Clerk and Recorder  

 

___________________________________ 

Deputy 
 

 

0055



0056

Cow Tipping, LLC-Recreational Vehicle Storage

Amended 03/08/2023

$250.00 paid  hb



0057



0058



 
 

 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

TOWN OF WIGGINS  
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  

March 14, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.  

 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL:  
A meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission for the Town of Wiggins, Colorado was 
held on Tuesday, March 14, 2023 in person.  The meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m. 
by Chairman Jeff Palmer.  The following Commissioners answered roll call:  Stan 
Baumgartner, Dan Ronning and Jim Musgrave.  Absent: Commissioner Jerry Avey.  Staff 
present was Planning and Zoning Administrator, Hope Becker. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Motion was made by Commissioner Stan Baumgartner to approve the agenda as written.  
Second was made by Commissioner Jim Musgrave.  Roll Call: Unanimously approved.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
Motion was made by Commissioner Jim Musgrave to approve the minutes from February 14, 
2022. Second was made by Commissioner Dan Ronning.  Roll Call: Unanimously approved. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1. PUBLIC HEARING - CONSIDERATION OF A SPECIAL REVIEW USE COW TIPPING, LLC  
The Public Hearing was opened at 7:06 pm by Chairman Jeff Palmer. 
 
Planning and Zoning Administrator confirmed that proper notification was posted.  Chairman 
Jeff Palmer asked the Commissioners if they had any disclosures. There were no disclosures 
voiced.  
 
Planning and Zoning Administrator, Hope Becker provided the staff report and information to 
the Commissioners regarding the application for Special Review Use application submitted by 
Cow Tipping, LLC for a recreational vehicle storage yard located on lot 1 of the Thomas Minor 
Subdivision.   
 
Hope explained that all departments reviewed the application.  Chief John Pachek of the 
Wiggins Rural Fire District documented concerns regarding the use of natural vegetation verses 
hard surfacing the lot.  However, the use of natural vegetation would not prevent the fire 
district from responding to an emergency at that location.  Chief Pachek’s comments also 
include the request for the applicant to amend the site plan to indicate a secondary emergency 
access that should be a minimum of 10’ wide and located on the Central Avenue Access 

0059



 

 

Page 2 

 

Easement to provide an emergency access to the lot from the east side of the property.  Chief 
Pachek’s comments and concerns were attached to the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
board packet. 
 
Hope indicated that the Town Engineer stated that if the lot was not changing any historic, 
physical characteristics of the lot then a grading plan was not necessary.  If the applicant 
decides to hard surface the lot then a grading plan may be required to determine historical 
stormwater flows. 
 
The Town Attorney provided comments regarding changes that need to take place to the site 
plan for recording purposes with Morgan County Clerk and Recorder.  These changes were 
signature blocks that need to be added to the site plan.  The Town Attorney’s comments were 
also included with the Planning and Zoning Commissioners’ board packet.  
 
Hope reviewed the conditions of approval that were included as part of the resolution.  The 
conditions pertained to the comments from the Fire Chief and the Town Attorney to amend the 
site plan prior to recording.  Hope also pointed out that a condition of approval would be to 
keep the Central Avenue and N Main Street access easement free and clear of all obstructions. 
 
The applicant was invited to present to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Brady Powers 
represented Cow Tipping, LLC.  He provided details about the fences planned around the 
property and described the type of gate they were thinking about.   
 
The Public Comment was opened at 7:21 pm. No comment from the Board Room or the Zoom 
audience was made.  The Public Comment section of the hearing was closed at 7:21 pm. 
 
The Public Hearing closed at 7:23 p.m. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the application.  Hope brought up to the 
commissioners that the applicant brought up fences to close off the N Main Street access 
easement.  Hope reminded the Planning and Zoning Commission that the access easements 
must remain open unless the Board of Trustees chose to vacate the easements.  Until such a 
vacation was approved by the Board of Trustees, both the Central Avenue and the N Main 
Street access easements would remain free and clear of any and all types of obstruction.  The 
applicant asked if they would be allowed to have a gate at the lot itself and Hope confirmed 
that they could.  The applicant asked if they could put a gate at the eastern edge of the 
property to keep traffic from coming down off of CHS/Rudy’s Tires property.  Hope indicated 
that she had a conversation with the owner of Rudy’s, Terry Rutenbeck, and that he was also 
considering a gate or signage to prevent campers from using their property as an exit.  She 
suggested that the applicant may want to contact Terry to work out an agreement. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission had no further comments or questions. 
 

0060



 

 

Page 3 

 

CONSIDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING RESOLUTION 01-2023: A Resolution 
Recommending Approval of a Special Review Use for Cow Tipping, LLC for a Recreational 
Vehicle Storage Yard Located in Lot 1 of the Thomas Minor Subdivision 
Motion was made by Commissioner Dan Ronning to adopt P&Z Resolution 01-2023 – A 
Resolution Recommending Approval of a Special Review Use for Cow Tipping, LLC for a 
Recreational Vehicle Storage Yard Located in Lot 1 of the Thomas Minor Subdivision. Seconded 
by Commissioner Jim Musgrave. Roll Call: Unanimously approved.  
 
2. PUBLIC HEARING - CONSIDERATION OF PZ RESOLUTION 02-2023  
 
This resolution is recommending approval to the Board of Trustees for an emergency 
temporary moratorium on the issuance of building permit, special review use, or business 
licenses to, or receipt of any Land Use Applications from, any property owners or applicants the 
purpose of which includes developments, construction, or operation of a RV Park or 
Campground within the Town of Wiggins.  The Planning and Zoning Commissioners have been 
working on the creation of guidelines and requirements for a RV Park Zone District concept to 
be added to the Wiggins Land Development Code.  Although these guidelines are close to 
completion, the Planning and Zoning Commission desire to wait for the results of the upcoming 
Comprehensive Plan to determine where such zone should be placed on the Wiggins Zoning 
map. Placing a temporary moratorium allows for the Planning and Zoning Commission, the 
Board of Trustees, and Staff a small reprieve from applications and hearings until the 
Comprehensive Study can be completed and the Land Development Code can be amended. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF PLANNING AND ZONING RESOLUTION 02-2023: A Resolution 
Recommending Approval of an Emergency Ordinance Imposing a Temporary Moratorium on 
the Issuance of a Building Permit, Special Review Use, or Business License to, or Receipt of any 
Land Use Application from, any Property Owner or Applicant the Purpose of Which Includes 
Development, Construction, or Operation of a RV Park or Campground. 
Motion was made by Commissioner Jim Musgrave to adopt P&Z Resolution 02-2023 – A 
Resolution Recommending Approval of an Emergency Ordinance Imposing a Temporary 
Moratorium on the Issuance of a Building Permit, Special Review Use, or Business License to, or 
Receipt of any Land Use Application from, any Property Owner or Applicant the Purpose of 
Which Includes Development, Construction, or Operation of a RV Park or Campground.  
Seconded by Commissioner Dan Ronning. Roll Call: Unanimously approved.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
Chairman Jeff Palmer, upon receiving no further comments or concerns from the 
Commissioners, adjourned the meeting at 7:40 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 

 

 

Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk 

0061



0062



0063



Inspection Requests: https://procodeinc.net/inspection-request/     or call (970) 305-3161 ext. 1 PERMIT IS NOT TRANSFERRABLE

BUILDING SHALL NOT BE OCCUPIED BEFORE FINAL APPROVAL

Date:

Permit Number

01/27/2023
23WIG-0005

BUILDING PERMIT

Permit Expires:

Name: SEWING, RICHARD & ROBIN 110 N Main Street, Wiggins, CO 80654

INSPECTIONS AND REPORTS

PERMIT TO BE POSTED IN A CONSPICUOUS LOCATION FOR DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION

Address:

Permit Type: Description of Work:

ISSUED BY:
Planning & Zoning Department - Building Department

Wiggins Town Hall - 304 Central Avenue, Wiggins, CO 80654

Commercial - Fence

12/31/2023

Finals

Inspection Date Inspector

Final Inspection

Certificate of Completion

0064



01/27/2023  hb approved w/ conditions 
- applicant/property owner responsibility to determine property lines 
- fence must not exceed property line 
- fence shall not exceed 6' 6" in height 
- Public easement accesses must remain open 
- applicant must work with the Wiggins Rural Fire District to meet 
 their minimum requirements for a secondary emergency exit & key 
code entry. 
- Both site plans submitted are being used to demonstrate the  
fence permit project and both will be used for fence permit  
inspections for project completion. 

0065



0066



STAFF SUMMARY 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
April 26, 2023

DATE:  April 21, 2023 

AGEND ITEM NUMBER: 7 

TOPIC:  Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 01-2022 and Adopting by 
Reference the 2018 International Plumbing Code and the 2020 National Electric Code 

STAFF MEMBER RESPONSIBLE:  Hope Becker, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

BACKGROUND: 
On February 23, 2022, the Board of Trustees adopted the 2018 International Code Council Building 
Codes through Ordinance No. 01-2022.  The ordinance also adopted the editions of the State of 
Colorado Plumbing Code and the National Electric Codes as “currently adopted by the State.”  

As the Town’s Ordinance is currently written, staff is concerned that if the State adopts updated 
electric and plumbing codes after July 1, 2023, which it likely will, the Town could be required to 
adopt the 2021 Energy Conservation Code at that time based on the passage of a recent House 
Bill, 22-1362 that states if a municipality updates one or more of its Building Codes after July 1, 
2023 and before July 1, 2026, then it must adopt and enforce an energy code that achieves 
equivalent or better energy performance than the 2021 Energy Conservation Code.  After July 1, 
2026, a municipality that updates one or more building codes must adopt and enforce an energy 
code that achieves equivalent or better energy and carbon emissions performance than the model 
low energy and carbon code created by the State Energy Code Board, which has yet to be created. 

The 2018 Energy Conservation Code was recommended, at the time of adoption by staff because 
it is less restrictive and less expensive for contractors and builders while increasing energy 
efficiency.  This was also a major concern staff received as feedback from the builders.  Concerns 
were raised that the newer energy codes may be too restrictive and may cause health issues 
despite its best intentions to conserve energy.   

SUMMARY: 
Staff presented to the Board of Trustees, in the January 11, 2023 work session, that there were 
some upcoming changes that were passed in a recent House Bill (HB 22-1362) that may affect the 

0067



Town’s adopted Building Codes.  Staff researched the House Bill and discussed options with the 
Town Attorney, ProCode and the Mozingo Code Group.  It was determined that there was not 
enough information to confidently determine what may happen if the Town does not amend the 
building codes to delete references to the State’s “currently adopted” plumbing and electrical 
codes.  The Bill is also unclear if the Town would be forced to adopt the 2021 Energy Conservation 
Code in its entirety or if contractors will only have to comply with the 2021 Energy Conservation 
Code requirements related to electrification, electric vehicles, and solar ready provisions 
specifically named in the State’s adopted electrical code. 

Staff has prepared the attached ordinance to protect the Town from being required to adopt a more 
stringent Energy Conservation Code when the State adopts its new plumbing and electrical codes.  
This ordinance amends Ordinance No. 01-2022 to incorporate the 2018 International Plumbing 
Code and the 2020 National Electric Code by reference. 

Staff presented the draft ordinance to the Board of Trustees at the March 8, 2023 work session.  
The first reading of the ordinance was presented to the Board of Trustees at the Board Meeting 
held on March 22, 2023.  The Board of Trustees approved Ordinance No. 01-2023 and set the 
second reading and public hearing on the ordinance for April 26, 2023. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Town of Wiggins’ adopted budget will not be negatively impacted by amending the Town’s 
building code ordinance. 

APPLICABILITY TO TOWN OBJECTIVES AND GOALS TO PROVIDE SERVICES:
The Town of Wiggins strives to provide current codes to provide its residents and businesses 
adequate public health and safety protections.  Updating the codes such as the building codes 
is a part of this effort.   

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

 The Board of Trustees may approve the second reading of the Ordinance as presented by 
staff for their consideration.  

 The Board of Trustees may approve the second reading of the Ordinance with conditions. 

 The Board of Trustees may disapprove the Ordinance and direct staff what steps should 
be taken next.   

MOTION FOR APPROVAL:
I make the motion to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 01-2023 – An Ordinance 
Amending Ordinance No. 01-2022 and Adopting by Reference the 2018 International Plumbing 
Code and the 2020 National Electric Code. 

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion, Second, Roll-Call, Vote. 
(Ordinances require affirmative votes from the majority of Trustees present.)

0068



1 

 TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO 
ORDINANCE NO. 01-2023 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 01-2022 AND ADOPTING BY 
REFERENCE THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE AND THE 2020 

NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees previously approved Ordinance No. 1-2022, which 
adopted by reference building and construction codes, including the editions of the Colorado 
Plumbing Code and the National Electric Code as currently adopted by the State of Colorado; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has determined that it should amend Ordinance No. 1-
2022 to adopt the 2018 International Plumbing Code and the 2020 National Electric Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF WIGGINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Section 9 of Ordinance No. 01-2022 is hereby amended by repealing Section 
9 in its entirety and replacing with the following:  

Sec. 9 – International Plumbing Code 

(a) Adoption.  The International Plumbing Code, 2018 Edition, as 
published by the International Code Council, 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 
Club Hills, IL 60478, Chapters 1 through 15 inclusive, including all appendices 
(“IPC”) is hereby adopted as the Town of Wiggins Plumbing Code.  The purpose 
and subject matter of the which includes comprehensive provisions regulating 
plumbing installations in or in connection with new and existing structures and 
providing uniform plumbing standards for the purpose of protecting the public 
health, safety and general welfare.   

(b) Compliance Required. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or 
corporation to erect, construct, alter, repair, remove, demolish or utilize any 
plumbing installations covered by the IPC, or cause the same to be done, in conflict 
with or in violation of any provision of the IPC.  

(c) Purpose.  The purpose and subject matter of the IPC is to regulate 
plumbing installations in or in connection with new and existing structures and 
providing uniform plumbing standards for the purpose of protecting the public 
health, safety and general welfare.   

(d) Amendments.  Additions, deletions, amendments and changes to the 
IPC, as adopted by reference pursuant to Section (a), are hereby adopted as follows: 

(1) IPC Section 101.1 (Title) is amended by the addition of the 
term “Town of Wiggins” where indicated. 

0069



2 

(2) IPC Section 305.4.1 (Sewer depth) is amended by filling in 
both areas where indicated to read “12 inches (305 mm).”  

(3) IPC Section 903.1 (Roof extension) is amended by inserting 
“12 inches (305 mm)” where indicated.  

(e) Penalties for Violation. It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or 
corporation to be in conflict with or in violation of any of the provisions of the IPC. 
In addition to other sanctions set forth in the IPC, a person or entity that violates 
the IPC may be fined in an amount not to exceed the maximum fine amount 
permitted to be imposed by the municipal court or, as more fully set forth in Section 
12 of this Ordinance.  Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been 
served shall be deemed a separate offense. 

Section 2.  Section 10 of Ordinance No. 01-2022 is hereby amended by repealing Section 
10 in its entirety and replacing with the following:  

Sec. 10 - National Electrical Code  

(a)  Adoption.  The National Electrical Code NFPA 70, 2020 Edition 
(“NEC”), as promulgated by the National Fire Protection Association, Inc., 1 
Batterymarch Park Quincy, Massachusetts, 02169-7471, and as adopted by the 
State of Colorado is hereby adopted by reference as the Town of Wiggins Electrical 
Code as if fully set out in this ordinance without additions, deletions, insertions or 
changes, except as referenced by the State Electrical Board of the Colorado 
Department of Regulatory Agencies, Division of Professions and Occupations. 

(b) Compliance Required. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or 
corporation to erect, construct, alter, repair, remove, demolish or utilize any 
electrical systems covered by the NEC, or cause the same to be done, in conflict 
with or in violation of any provision of the NEC.  

(c) Purpose.  The purpose and subject matter of the NEC includes 
minimum regulations for the practical safeguarding of persons and property from 
the hazards arising from the use of electricity and minimum standards relating to 
the installation of electrical conductors and equipment within or on public and 
private buildings and other structures, including mobile homes, recreational 
vehicles and floating dwelling units, and other premises such as yards, carnivals, 
parking and other lots, and industrial substations. The NEC provides for the 
issuance of permits, inspections and the collection of fees therefor. 

(d) Amendments.  None  

(e) Penalties for Violation. It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or 
corporation to be in conflict with or in violation of any of the provisions of the 

0070



3 

NEC. In addition to other sanctions set forth in the NEC, a person or entity that 
violates the NEC may be fined in an amount not to exceed the maximum fine 
amount permitted to be imposed by the municipal court or, as more fully set forth 
in Section 12 of this Ordinance.  Each day that a violation continues after due notice 
has been served shall be deemed a separate offense. 

Section 3. Should any one or more sections or provisions of this Ordinance or of any of 
the primary or secondary codes adopted by reference be judicially determined invalid or 
unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this 
Ordinance or the codes adopted by reference hereby, the intention being that the various sections 
and provisions are severable.

Section 4. Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or inconsistent 
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided, however, 
that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive any other section or 
part of any ordinance or code heretofore repealed or superseded and this repeal shall not affect or 
prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation of 
any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance. 

INTRODUCED, READ, ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS 22ND DAY OF 
MARCH 2023. 

PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING WILL BE HELD THE 26TH DAY OF 
APRIL 2023, AT 7:00 P.M.  

READ, ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, APPROVED, SIGNED, AND ORDERED 
PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY THIS 26TH DAY OF 2023. 

TOWN OF WIGGINS 

________________________ 
Christopher Franzen, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk 

0071



4 

I, Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk of the Town of Wiggins, Colorado, hereby certify and 

attest that the foregoing Ordinance No. 01-2023 was introduced, read, adopted and ordered 

published by title only, at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Wiggins, 

Colorado on the 26th day of April, 2023.  This Ordinance was published in The Fort Morgan Times 

on ___________________, 2023. 

Dated ____________________________

0072



 

 

 

 
 

 
STAFF SUMMARY 

 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

April 26, 2023 
 

 
DATE:  April 23, 2023 
 
AGEND ITEM NUMBER: 8 
 
TOPIC:  Consideration of A Resolution Approving Custodial and Deposit Agreements with High 
Plains Bank 

 
STAFF MEMBER RESPONSIBLE:  Tom Acre, Town Manager 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
High Plains Bank approached staff suggesting the Town make a change in how our accounts are 
handled.  Currently our funds are contained in typical accounts such as different interest checking 
accounts for the different funds.  The bank has been moving many of their account holders with 
large balances to the Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) service.  Through ICS, depositors can access multi-
million-dollar FDIC insurance on funds placed into demand deposit funds, money market deposit 
accounts or both. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Staff is requesting the Town enter into Custodial and Deposit Agreements with High Plains Bank 
for the ICS service.  Through ICS, the Town’s funds are FDIC insured, funds the Town needs to 
access to process invoices and payroll are placed in a demand fund for that purpose, and the 
funds placed in ICS are invested locally. 
 
Additional information on ICS is included with this Staff Summary and a representative from 
High Plains Bank will be available to answer questions. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Town of Wiggins’ adopted budget will not be negatively impacted by the adoption of 
Resolution No. 21-2023. 
 
APPLICABILITY TO TOWN OBJECTIVES AND GOALS TO PROVIDE SERVICES: 
The Town of Wiggins Board of Trustees and staff are required to be good stewards of the 
Town’s financial resources.  

0073



 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 
The Board of Trustees may approve the Resolution as presented by staff, request the Resolution 
be amended or not approve the Resolution.   
 
MOTION FOR APPROVAL: 
I make the motion to approve Resolution No. 21-2023 - A Resolution Approving Custodial and 
Deposit Agreements with High Plains Bank. 
 
ACTION REQUIRED: 
Motion, Second, Roll-Call, Vote. 
(Resolutions require affirmative votes from the majority of Trustees present.)  

0074



0075



0076



0077



0078



0079



 1 

  
TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2023 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CUSTODIAL AND DEPOSIT PLACEMENT 

AGREEMENTS WITH HIGH PLAINS BANK 

 

 WHEREAS, a Custodial Agreement and IntraFi Network Deposits DDA-MMDA Deposit 

Placement Agreement have been proposed between the Town of Wiggins and High Plains Bank; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees by this Resolution desires to approve the agreements.   

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO: 

 

 Section 1. The proposed Custodial Agreement and IntraFi Network Deposits DDA-

MMDA Deposit Placement Agreement by and between the Town of Wiggins and High Plains Bank 

(the “Agreements”) are hereby approved in essentially the same form as the copy of such Agreement 

accompanying this Resolution. 

 

 Section 2. The Mayor or Town Manager and Town Clerk are authorized to execute the 

Agreements in substantially the same form as the copy attached hereto; further, the Mayor or the 

Town Manager are hereby granted the authority to negotiate and approve such revisions to the 

Agreements as he determines are necessary or desirable for the protection of the Town, so long as the 

material terms and conditions of the Agreement are not altered. 

  

 INTRODUCED, ADOPTED AND RESOLVED THIS 26TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 

 

 

TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO 

 

________________________________ 

Christopher Franzen, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk 

 
 
 
 

0080



-

-------
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-----------------

0081



0082



0083



0084



0085



0086



0087



0088



0089



0090



0091



0092



0093



0094



0095



0096



0097



0098



0099



0100



0101



STAFF SUMMARY 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
April 26, 2023

DATE:  April 23, 2023 

AGEND ITEM NUMBER: 9 

TOPIC:  Consideration of A Resolution Authorizing the Town Manager to Approve Change Orders 
with GLH Construction for the Main Street Improvements Project 

STAFF MEMBER RESPONSIBLE:  Tom Acre, Town Manager 

BACKGROUND: 
The Town of Wiggins Board of Trustees approved Resolution No. 17-2023 on April 5, 2023 
authorizing the contract with GLH Construction for the Main Street Improvements Project 
including curb, gutter and sidewalk; drainage improvements and paving.  GLH Construction 
started construction on April 10, 2023 and shortly discovered an issue with the vertical and 
horizontal survey for the stormwater drainage pipe and existing sidewalk on the west side of 
Main Street.   

The Board of Trustees requested staff obtain a cost estimate for placing a concrete drainage pan 
across Main Street in the area of 2nd and Corona Avenue.  GLH has provided a cost estimate for 
this work. 

As the project was starting staff, the project engineer and GLH discussed the section of sidewalk 
that is incomplete on the west side Main Street from the elementary school to 5th Avenue and 
from 5th Avenue to Tiger Way.  These sections of sidewalk were not thought as being needed to 
solve the drainage, repaving and east side curb gutter and sidewalk. GLH has provided a cost 
estimate for the missing sidewalk to 5th Avenue.  The sidewalk from 5th Avenue to Tiger way will 
require additional consideration. 

SUMMARY: 
GLH retained King Surveying to survey the project in an effort to determine what changes may 
be needed to mitigate the discrepancy and keep the project moving forward.  The survey 
discrepancy had a domino effect on the storm drainage pipe installation, the drainage flow at 5th

and Main, and a portion of the street improvements.  The attached change orders address the 

0102



necessary cost decreases and increases related to the survey discrepancy.  GLH has provided 
change orders for the drainage pan across the north end of Main Street at 2nd Avenue and the 
missing section of sidewalk in front of the school.   

Staff, the project engineer and GLH will continue to have discussions to determine the root 
cause of the survey discrepancy, however to keep the project moving forward the attached 
change orders are being presented for the Trustees consideration. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
Approval of this Resolution and the attached Change Orders will result in spending of a portion 
of undesignated fund balance in the General Fund. 

APPLICABILITY TO TOWN OBJECTIVES AND GOALS TO PROVIDE SERVICES:
Making street improvements in Town is one of the goals of the Town Board of Trustees and 
Staff.  Improving this section of Main Street is a priority of the Board and a desire of the 
citizens.  Approving Resolution No. 22-2023 supports these goals and priorities. 

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES:
The Board of Trustees may approve the Resolution as presented by staff, request the Resolution 
be amended or not approve the Resolution.  Not approving change orders 1, 2and 3 may result 
in a project delay and further cost increases.  Not approving change order 4, does not allow the 
cost efficiency of doing this work while the contractor is on site. 

MOTION FOR APPROVAL:
I make the motion to approve Resolution No. 22-2023 - A Resolution Authorizing the Town 
Manager to Approve Change Orders with GLH Construction for the Main Street Improvements 
Project. 

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion, Second, Roll-Call, Vote. 
(Resolutions require affirmative votes from the majority of Trustees present.)

0103



TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-2023 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO APRROVE CHANGE 
ORDERS WITH GLH CONSTRUCTION FOR THE MAIN STREET IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Town of Wiggins Board of Trustees approved Resolution 17-2023 on 
April 5, 2023 authorizing the Town Manager to execute a contract with GLH Construction for the 
Main Street Improvements Project including curb, gutter and sidewalk; drainage improvements 
and paving; and 

WHEREAS, GLH started construction on April 10, 2023 and during construction 
encountered survey and site discrepancies that required additional surveying; and  

WHEREAS, several change orders (CO 1-4) have been submitted by GLH reflecting both 
reductions and increases in the project scope and cost.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO: 

Section 1. The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Town Manager to approve 
Change Orders Nos. 1-4 submitted by GLH Construction for the Main Street Improvements Project 
work in essentially the same form as the copies of such Change Orders accompanying this Resolution. 

Section 2. The Town Manager and Town Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and 
deliver all documents and monies in accordance with this Resolution.  

INTRODUCED, ADOPTED AND RESOLVED THIS 26TH DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

TOWN OF WIGGINS, COLORADO 

_______________________________ 
Christopher Franzen, Mayor  

ATTEST:   

_______________________________ 
Tom Acre, Interim Town Clerk 

0104



To:        Town of Wiggins

             Attn:   Mike Trbovich

From:  Gary Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

           Issah Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

Monday, April 24, 2023

      Wiggins Main Street Improvements

ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENDED

Storm Relocation

Remove 2 Manholes EACH 1.00 -$10,007.68 -$10,007.68

Concrete Cap where sufficient cover is not possible LF 50.00 $84.26 $4,213.00

Add Inlet EACH 1.00 $7,018.00 $7,018.00

Construction Survey LUMP SUM 1.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Stormline Remove and Replace

15" HDPE Remove and Replace LF 633.00 $20.85 $13,200.00

Proposed Changes following King Survey Topo's 

Aggregate Base Course 7" Thick Pending Engineer Approval TON 61.00 -$39.32 -$2,398.52

Hot Mix Asphalt - 5" Thick Pending Engineer Approval TON 50.00 -$121.32 -$6,066.00

Concrete Sidewalk Pending Engineer Approval SY 67.00 -$54.03 -$3,620.01

Additional Survey to establish actual street and storm elevations LUMP SUM 1.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00

Change Order 1 Total: $8,838.79

$8,838.79

GLH CONSTRUCTION, LLC ACCEPTED

BY: Issah Smith BY:

TITLE: Estimator TITLE:

ATTEST: ATTEST:

BY: BY:

Construction Total:

Estimated Quantities Field Measured To Verify For Payment.

ESTIMATE

Change Order 1 Rev. 3 - Changes to Adjust Street, Add Inlet, and Compensation for Additional Survey

0105



To:        Town of Wiggins

             Attn:   Mike Trbovich

From:  Gary Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

           Issah Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

Monday, April 24, 2023

      Wiggins Main Street Improvements

ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENDED

Crosspan at 2nd Street

Construction Survey LUMP SUM 1.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Remove and Replace Existing Asphalt for 2nd Street Crosspan installation - Patching included SF 900.00 $12.91 $11,619.00

2nd Street 6' Crosspan Installation (90' Length x 6' Width) SF 540.00 $22.22 $11,998.80

Proposed Changes Total: $26,117.80

$26,117.80

GLH CONSTRUCTION, LLC ACCEPTED

BY: Issah Smith BY:

TITLE: Estimator TITLE:

ATTEST: ATTEST:

BY: BY:

Construction Total:

Estimated Quantities Field Measured To Verify For Payment.

ESTIMATE

CO 2 Crosspan at 2nd Street

0106



To:        Town of Wiggins

             Attn:   Mike Trbovich

From:  Gary Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

           Issah Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

Monday, April 24, 2023

      Wiggins Main Street Improvements

ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENDED

Crosspan and Chase at 5th Street

Construction Survey LUMP SUM 1.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00

10' Square Radius EACH 1.00 $2,320.33 $2,320.33

5th Street 6' Crosspan (30' Length x 6' Width) SF 180.00 $17.25 $3,105.00

Additional Inlet Total: $6,625.33

$6,625.33

GLH CONSTRUCTION, LLC ACCEPTED

BY: Issah Smith BY:

TITLE: Estimator TITLE:

ATTEST: ATTEST:

BY: BY:

Construction Total:

Estimated Quantities Field Measured To Verify For Payment.

ESTIMATE

CO 3 Crosspan and Chase at 5th Street - Required by Existing Grade Elevations

0107



To:        Town of Wiggins

             Attn:   Mike Trbovich

From:  Gary Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

           Issah Smith: GLH Construction, LLC

Monday, April 24, 2023

      Wiggins Main Street Improvements

ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENDED

Existing School Sidewalk to Crosswalk 

Construction Survey LUMP SUM 1.00 $2,600.00 $2,600.00

30" Curb and Gutter Pending Engineer Approval LF 130.00 $25.04 $3,255.20
Concrete Sidewalk (130 LF x 6' Width) Pending Engineer Approval SY 90.00 $54.03 $4,862.70

4' Sidewalk Chase Pending Engineer Approval LF 5.00 $825.00 $4,125.00

Concrete Curb Ramp 2 EACH Pending Engineer Approval SY 16.00 $147.10 $2,353.60

Detectable Warning (Truncated Domes) Pending Engineer Approval SY 3.00 $268.82 $806.46

Existing Sidewalk to Crosswalk Total: $18,002.96

$18,002.96

GLH CONSTRUCTION, LLC ACCEPTED

BY: Issah Smith BY:

TITLE: Estimator TITLE:

ATTEST: ATTEST:

BY: BY:

Construction Total:

Estimated Quantities Field Measured To Verify For Payment.

ESTIMATE

CO 4 Sidewalk from Existing School Walk to Crosspan on 5th Ave

0108



10

0109

tacre
Rectangle

tacre
Rectangle



0110

tacre
Rectangle



0111



0112



0113


	BOT AGENDA 04.26.2023
	BOT Minutes Board Meeting 2023 03 22
	BOT Minutes Special Meeting 2023 04 05 
	BOT Minutes Special Meeting 2023 04 12 
	Pymnt Apprvl Rprt April 2023 04 26
	Pymnt Apprvl Rprt April 2023 04

	WPD March 2023
	FS March 2023 04 26
	Cow Tipping - Bannd RV & Boat Spec Review 2023 04 6
	05 Staff Summary BOT-spec rev rv boat storage yd 2023 04 26 
	Cow Tipping -BRANND RV BOAT STORAGE YD PACKET
	1c-BRANND RV-BOAT STORAGE PLAN 01.04.22
	1d-Branned Boat_RV Storage-FIRE DEPT CHIEF COMMENTS
	1g-BRANND BOAT STRG-SITE PLAN-FIRE HIGHLIGHTS
	1h-RV Storage Site Plan (mc comments 1.12.2023)
	1f-Brannd Baot Storage App 2023 03 08 (amended)
	1e-Brannd Boat Storage Site Plan
	1i-Brannd-Cow Tipping PZ Spec Rev Res 01-2023 (signed)
	110 N MAIN ST-COMM FENCE SITE PLANS
	110 N MAIN ST-COMM FENCE


	Staff Summary-Bldg Code Amendment (elec plumb) 2023 04 26 
	Ord No. 01 -2023 Plumbing and Electrical Code 2023 04 26 
	High Plains Bank ICS Info
	Res No. 21-2023 Banking Agmt 2023 04 26
	High Plains Bank ICS Agreement Strike out
	Staff Summary Main Street Improvements Project Change Orders 2023 04 26 
	Res No. 22-2023 Authorizing TM to Approve Change Orders with GLH Construction Main Street Project 2023 04 26
	CO 1 Rev. 3 - Adjust Street, Add Inlet, add 2 handicap Ramps, and Compensation for Additional Survey
	CO 2 - 2nd Street Crosspan
	CO 3 - Crosspan on 5th Street
	CO 4 - Sidewalk Extension from Existing Sidewalk to Proposed Sidewalk on 5th Street
	Liq Lic Renewal JUST-ONE-MORE_STAFF-REPORT 2023 04 26

